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FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AND PROPERTY DATA}

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

2002 2001 2000
Revenues . $162,296 $153,088 $145,627
- income ! $39.745 $42915 $40,985
Net income | $13592 $33910 $33,2%4
Funds from operations ® $69,233 - $68,086 $64,070
- Net income per common share:
| _ Basic $ 077 $ 19 $ 192
Diluted | $ 076 $ 194 % 191
Funds from operations per share/OP unit: @ |
Basic % 343 3 342§ 320
Diluted $ 340 $ 339 $ 3.9
Weighted average common shares outstanding:
SO Basic 17595 17,258 17,304
- ) Diluted - 17781 17,440 17,390
- / Total properties 129 16 109
: Total developed sites 43959 40544 38282

(1) Before equity income (loss) from affiliates, minority interests, discontinued operations and gain from property dispositions, net.

(2) Funds from operations (“FFO”) is defined by the National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts (“NAREIT”) as “net income (computed in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles) excluding gains (or losses) from sales of property, plus rental property depreciation and amortization, and after adjustments for unconsolidated
partnerships and joint ventures” Industry analysts consider FFO to be an appropriate supplemental measure of the operating performance of an equity REIT primarily because
the computation of FFO excludes historical cost depreciation as an expense and thereby facilitates the comparison of REITs which have different cost bases in their assets.
Historical cost accounting for real estate assets implicitly assumes that the value of real estate assets diminishes predictably over time, whereas real estate values have instead
historically risen or fallen based upon market conditions. FFO does not represent cash flow from operations as defined by generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP™) and
is a supplemental measure of performance that does not replace net income as a measure of performance or net cash provided by operating activities as a measure of liquidity.
In addition, FFQ is not intended as a measure of a REIT's ability to meet debt principal repayments and other cash requirements, nor as a measure of working capital. The detailed
reconciliation of GAAP net income to FFO is included in the “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” section of the accompanying
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002.




Sustained economic sluggishness in 2002 dampened but did not limit
growth at Sun Communities. In retrospect, the industry about us—
manufacturers, retailers, lending institutions, the securitization
marketplace—has been in a "perfect storm" scenario. Indeed, the
impact of stagnant job growth and modest expansion throughout
the economy has sustained the challenges brought about by the
industry. Many industry-related management decisions such as easy
credit, expansion of manufacturing facilities and aggressive retailer
acquisitions also played into that storm.The ripple effects from a
tide of repossessions continued to be felt in 2002, driving shipments
of new homes down to 168,000 for the year, a dramatic decline
from the 373,000 new homes shipped in |998. Repossessions are
estimated to hover in a range from 75,000-100,000 in 2003.The oversupply of these repossessed homes should
steadily begin to decline as a result of the recent resolution of the Conseco Finance bankruptcy, but will continue to

pressure new manufactured housing sales.

Despite these difficult circumstances, Sun Communities is pleased to report a solid performance for the year, and an
optimistic outlook for 2003.Total revenue climbed to $162.3 million in 2002 up $9.2 million from 2001, while Funds
From Operations climbed $1.1 million to $69.2 million. Operating income for the same 103 communities owned in
both years was up 4.7% while net occupancy dipped by 369 sites. The pro forma net occupancy gain for the entire
portfolio as if all properties were owned for the year was a positive 341 sites, well ahead of the 2-3% decline in

occupancy we have seen in previous recessionary periods.

Our performance and expectations are based largely on the sustainable fundamentals of our asset class. Stable cash
flow, low turnover rates, expense controls and low capital expenditures characterize the operations of manufactured
housing communities. A portfolio with quality leasable sites, regional diversification, a strong balance sheet and a leadin;
proactive professional management group differentiates Sun Communities from other operators. Our Recession
Resistant management approach is reflected in several innovative, forward-thinking steps taken over the last year. At
Sun, we remain committed to proactive management and decisive action to not only weather current turbulence in th
industry, but to place the organization in prime position to capitalize on the market's anticipated return to health. [n
2002, we executed a number of transactions and programs that we feel confident will keep us at the forefront of our

industry. They included:

Opportumstic Tcouisimons ano Jisposiions
Last year, Sun acquired one stabilized community totaling 552 sites for $21.3 million and three partially occupied
development communities for approximately $48.6 million, consisting of 682 occupied sites, 248 fully developed,
vacant sites and 538 sites available for future development. During the year, we added 165 revenue-producing site:

while selling 460 new and used homes, and brokering 592 home resales.




GonmaoL of SunGuame

In 2002, Sun gained operational control of SunChamp L.L.C. and its eleven new community developments located
in Texas, North Carolina, Indiana and Ohio through the issuance of a $6.2 million subordinated note to acquire
Champion Enterprises' ownership interest. These communities are modern, well located and provide new
residents the highest quality leasable sites in the country. Sun also acquired the construction loans on SunChamp
from troubled Conseco Finance at an 1 1% discount, resulting in a nearly $5.8 million discount. These moves enable

us to capture $12 million of value.

Staatecic ManuracTuren/Rermie ALuances

Through the formation of new strategic alliances with the nation's four leading manufacturers, owners of
approximately 700 of the nation's most successful retail sales operations, Sun strengthened its ability to fill
vacancies in our new and existing communities. The manufacturers have and will be establishing new sales centers
and model homes ready for occupancy in many of our communities, enabling buyers to purchase a home in a
completed neighborhood environment. Given the tight credit market for manufactured home buyers, the
manufacturers' direct access to captive financing adds a compelling incentive for buyers to make a Sun community

their home.

Tapeing Tue Rerai Mamker

An oversupply of repossessed homes, tightened credit standards for manufactured home buyers and disparity
between all-time low private property mortgage rates and rates for manufactured homes continue to buffet our
industry. Sun, however, is turning these negatives into positives with innovative new methods of attracting current
renters to our communities. Our existing Sun Rental Home Program will be ramped up to take advantage of the
glut of repossessed homes in the market by enabling us to purchase these homes at a fraction of their original
cost and profitably lease them to residents. On average, these homes are only 3-4 years old and the program
yields significant returns on our capital investment after expenses and reserves and allows us to showcase our
communities' lifestyles to
customers. Sun also extends
to these residents favorable
terms to buy their leased
manufactured homes, once
they have demonstrated a
credit history. Historically in
recessionary periods, we have
found this to be an
outstanding opportunity to
broaden our market by

competing very favorably with




multifamily and attracting apartment renters. Manufactured housing has a number of
advantages over apartments as rentals—the homes are quieter with no shared wall

spaces, they are larger and more private and they offer children a yard to play in.

FinancieiLy Resraucranng Caiben

Last year, Sun determined to mitigate market concerns about our investment in
Origen Financial and write-off our remaining $13.6 million equity investment in
Origen.While Origen continues to be a high-quality originator and servicer of loans
on manufactured homes, its profitability has been hampered by the poor underwriting
of other lenders, including companies now in bankruptcy.We are hopeful that the current adverse conditions will

abate and Origen will become a profitable national lender dedicated to our industry.

Somie T, Comeoes ann Tlone
With competition for residents as intense as it has ever been, Sun Communities has gone on the offensive,
providing a range of competitive amenities to not only attract new customers, but also retain existing occupants.
In keeping with our comprehensive Residents First campaign launched in 2001, this year we unveiled an affordable
storage leasing program, supplying residents with new, one- and two-car garages, storage sheds or carports right
on their home sites. The program, which eliminates the need for costly, inconvenient off-site storage, has been well
received. Sun residents have also responded favorably to our initial testing of Priority Entertainment, which
provides cable and Internet access at highly favorable rates. The program was successfully rolled out at ten Sun

communities last year and was extremely well received.

Over the course of this year and beyond, we expect Recession Resistant measures such as these to enhance our

performance. For 2003, we look to take advantage of favorable interest rates to fix floating rate debt. Furthermore,

- with respect to our same property portfolio of 109 communities, we anticipate occupancy to be stable and net
! ~
N —— operating income to grow by 4.5%.We anticipate weighted average annual rent increases of 4.5% while carefully
N managing operating expenses.

L ’ At Sun, we remain up to the challenges that face our industry and look forward to finding new ways to increase
shareholder value. On behalf of all of our dedicated employees across the country, | thank you for your

continued support.

oo = Gary A. Shiffman

Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Director
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As used in this report, “Company”, “Us”, “We”, “Our”’ and similar terms means Sun
Communities, Inc., a Maryland corporation, and one or more of its subsidiaries (including the Operating
Partnership (as defined below)).

“PARTI
ITEM1.  BUSINESS

General

We are a self-administered and self-managed real estate investment trust, or REIT. We
own, operate, develop and finance manufactured housing communities concentrated in the

midwestern and southeastern United States. We are a fully integrated real estate company which,
together with our affiliates and predecessors, have been in the business of acquiring, operating
and expanding manufactured housing communities since 1975. As of December 31, 2002, we
owned and operated a portfolio of 129 properties located in seventeen states (the “Properties™),
including 117 manufactured housing communities, five recreational vehicle communities, and
seven properties containing both manufactured housing and recreational vehicle sites. As of
December 31, 2002, the Properties contained an aggregate of 43,959 developed sites comprised
of 38,832 developed manufactured home sites and 5,127 recreational vehicle sites and an
additional 7,642 manufactured home sites suitable for development. In order tc enhance property
performance and cash flow, the Company, through Sun Home Services, Inc., a Michigan
corporation (“SHS”™), actively markets and sells new and used manufactured homes for
placement in the Properties.

Our executive and principal property management office is located at 31700 Middlebelt
Road, Suite 145, Farmington Hills, Michigan 48334 and our telephone number is (248) 932-
3100. We have regional property management offices located in Austin, Texas, Dayton, Chig,
Grand Rapids, Michigan, Elkhart, Indiana and Crlando, Florida, and we employed an aggregate
of 564 pecple as of December 31, 2002,

QOur website address is www.suncommunities.com and we make available, free of charge,
on or through our website all of cur periodic reports, including our annual report on Form 10-K,
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and cwrrent reports on Form 8-K, as soon as reasonably
practicable after we file such reports with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Recent Developments

Acquisitions. During 2002, we acquired three communities in Texas for approximately
$48.6 million in cash, Preferred OP Units (“POP Units™), and assumption of debt. These
communities currently comprise approximately 930 developed sites and an additional 538 sites
available for development.

SunChamp. In December 2002, we purchased the ownership interest of Champion
Enterprises in SunChamp LLC, a joint venture to develop eleven new communities in Texas,
North Carolina, Ohio and Indiana, for approximately $6.2 million, payable pursuant tc a 7-year
promissory note (a) bearing interest at 3.46% per annum, (b) requiring no principal or interest
payments until maturity (other than a one-time prepayment of interest in the amount of
approximately $270,000 at closing), and (c) providing that all payment obligations are
subordinate in all respects to the return of the members’ equity (including the gross book value
of the acquired equity) plus a preferred return. As a result of this acquisition, we currently own
approximately a 59% equity interest in SunChamp. In addition, in September 2002, we
acquired the senior lender’s entire right, title and interest in and to SunChamp’s construction
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loan for a purchase price equal to 89% of the outstanding indebtedness thereof, which
constitutes a discount of approximately $5.8 million.

Origen. We currently own approximately a 30% equity interest in Origen Financial,
L.L.C. (“Origen”) (a financial services company that provides and services loans used by
consumers to finance the purchase of manufactured homes). Origen’s business has been
negatively impacted by the current condition of the manufactured housing finance industry,
illustrated by the bankrupicy filings of Oakwood Homes Corporation and Conseco, Inc. in late
2002. In particular, Origen’s business has suffered as a result of the general economic
recession, excessive amounts of repossession inventory, declining recovery rates in the
repossession market and the deteriorating asset-backed securitization market. While we believe
that Origen can still become a profitable national lender in its industry, we wrote-off our
remaining equity investment in Origen (approximately $13.6 million) in the fourth quarter of
2002. We reached this decision based on our assessment of Origen’s existing market conditions
and prospects as well as a “worst-case” scenario prepared by Origen’s management for 2003.
We believe our equity investment in Origen is impaired from a financial reporting perspective
and should be written off.

We, along with two other participants, provide a secured credit facility to Origen bearing
interest at a per annum rate equal to LIBOR plus 700 basis points, with a minimum interest rate
of 11% and a maximum interest rate of 15%. Although this credit facility was due in December
2002, Origen did not have sufficient liquidity to repay this facility when due, primarily as a
result of its inability to sell its loan portfolio in the deteriorating asset-backed securitization
market. Accordingly, this credit facility was renewed and extended in December 2002. The
facility has been increased to $58.0 million, consisting of a $48.0 million line of credit and a
$10.0 million term loan, and is due December 31, 2003, extendable automatically to December
31, 2004 upon the occurrence of certain events. Our participation in this credit facility has
increased from $20.0 million to $35.5 million, of which $18.0 million is subordinate in all
respects to the first $40.0 million funded under the facility by the three participants. We do not
believe that our advances to Origen are impaired at this time because Origen had substantial
reserves and positive equity at December 31, 2002. We will continually evaluate the
realizability of our advances to Origen in accordance with applicable accounting standards.

See, “Factors That May Affect Future Results — Our advances to Origen subject us to certain
risks.”

Structure of the Company

Structured as an umbrella partnership REIT, or UPREIT, Sun Communities Operating
Limited Partnership, a Michigan limited partnership (the “Operating Partnership”), is the entity
through which we conduct substantially all of our operations, and which owns, either directly or
indirectly through subsidiaries, all of our assets (the subsidiaries, collectively with the Operating
Partnership, the “Subsidiaries”). This UPREIT structure enables us to comply with certain
complex requirements under the Federal tax rules and regulations applicable to REITs, and to
acquire manufactured housing communities in transactions that defer some or all of the sellers’
tax consequences. We are the sole general partner of, and, as of December 31, 2002, held
approximately 87.6% of the interests (not including preferred limited partnership interests) in, the
Operating Partnership. The Subsidiaries also include SHS, which provides manufactured home
sales and other services to current and prospective tenants of the Properties. Along with several
other subsidiaries, SHS wholly owns Sun Water Oak Golf, Inc., which was organized to own and
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operate the golf course, restaurant and related facilities located on the Water Oak Property that
was acquired in December 1993, and SUI TRS, Inc., which was organized to hold our investment
in Origen. See “Factors that May Affect Future Results -- Some of our directors and officers may
have conflicts of interest with respect to certain related party transactions and other business
interests.”

The Manufactured Housing Community Industry

A manufactured housing community is a residential subdivision designed and improved
with sites for the placement of manufactured homes and related improvements and amenities.
Manufactured homes are detached, single-family homes which are produced off-site by
manufacturers and installed on sites within the community. Manufactured homes are available in
a wide array of designs, providing owners with a level of customization generally unavailable in
other forms of multifamily housing.

Modemn manufactured housing communities, such as the Properiies, contain
improvements similar to other garden-style residential developments, including centralized
entrances, paved streets, curbs and gutters, and parkways. In addition, these communities also
often provide a number of amenities, such as a clubhouse, a swimming pool, shuffleboard courts,
tennis courts, laundry facilities and cable television service.

The owner of each home on our Properties leases the site on which the home is located.
We own the underlying land, utility connections, streets, lighting, driveways, common area
amenities and other capital improvements and are responsible for enforcement of community
guidelines and maintenance. Some of the Properties provide water and sewer service through
public or private utilities, while others provide these services to residents from on-site facilities.
Each owner within our Properties is responsible for the maintenance of his or her home and
leased site. As a result, capital expenditure needs tend to be less significant, relative to
multi-family rental apartment complexes.

Property Management

Our property management strategy emphasizes intensive, hands-on management by
dedicated, on-site district and community managers. We believe that this on-site focus enables us
to continually monitor and address tenant concerns, the performance of competitive properties
and local market conditions. Of the 564 Company employees, 491 are located on-site as property
managers, support staff, or maintenance personnel.

Our community managers are cverseen by Brian W. Fannon, Chief Operating Officer,
who has 33 years of property management experience, four Vice Presidents of Operations and
seventeen Regional Vice Presidents. In addition, the Regional Vice Presidents are responsible
for semi-annual market surveys of competitive communities, interaction with local manufactured
home dealers and regular property inspections.
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Each district or community manager performs regular inspections in order to continually
monitor the Property’s physical condition and provides managers with the opportunity to
understand and effectively address tenant concerns. In addition to a district or community
manager, each district or property has an on-site maintenance personnel and management support
staff. We hold periodic training sessions for all property management personnel to ensure that
management policies are implemented effectively and professionally.

Home Sales

SHS offers manufactured home sales services to tenants and prospective tenants of our
Properties. Since tenants often purchase a home already on-site within a community, such
services enhance occupancy and property performance. Additionally, because many of the
homes on the Properties are sold through SHS, better control of home quality in our communities
can be maintained than if sales services were conducted solely through third-party brokers.

Regulations and [nsurance

General. Manufactured housing community properties are subject to various laws,
ordinances and regulations, including regulations relating to recreational facilities such as
swimming pools, clubhouses and other common areas. We believe that each Property has the
necessary operating permits and approvals.

Americans with Disabilities Act (“ADA”). The Properties and any newly acquired
manufactured housing communities must comply with the ADA. The ADA has separate
compliance requirements for “public accommodations” and “commercial facilities,” but
generally requires that public facilities such as clubhouses, pools and recreation areas be made
accessible to people with disabilities. Compliance with ADA requirements could require removal
of access barriers and other capital improvements at our Properties. Noncompliance could result
in imposition of fines or an award of damages to private litigants. We do not believe the ADA
will have a material adverse impact on our results of operations. If required property
improvements involve a greater expenditure than we currently anticipate, or if the improvements
must be made on a more accelerated basis than we anticipate, our ability to make expected
distributions could be adversely affected. We believe that our competitors face similar costs to
comply with the requirements of the ADA.

Insurance. Our management believes that the Properties are covered by adequate fire,
flood, property and business interruption insurance provided by reputable companies with
commercially reasonable deductibles and limits. We maintain a blanket policy that covers all of
our Properties. We have obtained title insurance insuring fee title to the Properties in an
aggregate amount which we believe to be adequate.

Factors That May Affect Future Results

Our prospects are subject to certain uncertainties and risks. Our future results could differ
materially from current results, and our actual results could differ materially from those projected
in forward-looking statements as a result of certain risk factors. These risk factors include, but
are not limited to, those set forth below, other one-time events, and important factors disclosed
previously and from time to time in other Company filings with the Securities and Exchange
Commission. This report contains certain forward-looking statements.
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Real Estate Risks

General economic conditions and the concentration of our properties in Michigan and Florida
may affect our ability to generate sufficient revenue.

The market and economic conditions in cur current markets generally, and specifically in
metropolitan areas of our current markets, may significantly affect manufactured home
occupancy or rental rates. Occupancy and rental rates, in turn, may significantly affect our
revenues, and if our communities do not generate revenues sufficient to meet our operating
expenses, including debt service and capital expenditures, our cash flow and ability to pay or
refinance our debt obligations could be adversely affected. We derived significant amounts of
rental income for the period ended December 31, 2002 from properties located in Michigan and
Florida. As of December 31, 2002, 44 of our 129 Properties, or approximately 34%, are located
in Michigan, and 20 or approximately 16%, are located in Florida. As a result of the geographic
concentration of ocur Properties in Michigan and Florida, we are exposed to the risks of
downturns in the local economy or other local real estate market conditions which could
adversely affect occupancy rates, rental rates and property values of properties in these markets.
The following factors, among others, may adversely affect the revenues generated by our
communities:

o the national and Iocal economic climate which may be adversely impacted by,
among other factors, plant closings and industry slowdowns;

o local real estate market conditions such as the oversupply of manufactured housing
sites or a reduction in demand for manufactured housing sites in an area;

o the rental market which may limit the extent to which rents may be increased
to meet increased expenses without decreasing occupancy rates;

o the perceptions by prospective tenants of the safety, convenience and
attractiveness of the Properties and the neighborhoods where they are located;

o zoning or other regulatory restrictions;

o competition from other available manufactured housing sites and alternative
forms of housing (such as apartment buildings and site-built single-family
homes);

o our ability to provide adequate management, maintenance and insurance;

o increased operating costs, inciuding insurance premiums, real estate taxes and
utilities; or

e the enactment of rent contrcl laws.



Our income would also be adversely affected if tenants were unable to pay rent or if sites
were unable to be rented on favorable terms. If we were unable to promptly relet or renew. the
leases for a significant number of the sites, or if the rental rates upon such renewal or reletting
were significantly lower than expected rates, then our business and results of operations could be
adversely affected. In addition, certain expenditures associated with each equity investment
(such as real estate taxes and maintenance costs) generally are not reduced when circumstances
cause a reduction in income from the investment. Furthermore, real estate investments are
relatively illiquid and, therefore, will tend to limit our ability to vary our portfolio promptly in
response to changes in economic or other conditions.

Competition affects occupancy levels and rents which could adversely affect our revenues.

All of our Properties are located in developed areas that include other manufactured
housing community properties. The number of competitive manufactured housing community
properties in a particular area could have a material adverse effect on our ability to lease sites and
on rents charged at our Properties or at any newly acquired properties. We may be competing
with others with greater resources and whose officers and directors have more experience than
our officers and directors. In addition, other forms of multi-family residential properties, such as
private and federally funded or assisted multi-family housing projects and single-family housing,
provide housing alternatives to potential tenants of manufactured housing communities.

Our ability to sell manufactured homes may be affected by various factors, which may in turn
adversely affect our profitability.

SHS is in the manufactured home sales market offering manufactured home sales services
to tenants and prospective tenants of our communities. The market for the sale of manufactured
homes may be adversely affected by the following factors:

o downturns in economic conditions which adversely impact the housing
market;

o an oversupply of, or a reduced demand for, manufactured homes;
o the difficulty facing potential purchasers in obtaining affordable financing as a
result of helghtened lending criteria; and

o an increase in the rate of manufactured home repossessions which provide
aggressively priced competition to new manufactured home sales.

Any of the above listed factors could adversely impact our rate of manufactured home
sales, which would result in a decrease in profitability.

Increases in taxes and regulatory compliance costs may reduce our revenue.

Costs resulting from changes in real estate tax laws generally may be passed through to
tenants and will not affect us. Increases in income, service or other taxes, however, generally are
not passed through to tenants under leases and may adversely affect our funds from operations
and our ability to pay or refinance our debt. Similarly, changes in laws increasing the potential
liability for environmental conditions existing on properties or increasing the restrictions on
discharges or other conditions may result in significant unanticipated expenditures, which would
adversely affect our business and results of operations.
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We may not be able to integrate or finance our development activities.

We are engaged in the construction and development of new communities, and intend to
continue in the development and construction business in the future. Our development.and
construction business may be exposed to the following risks which are in addition to those risks
associated with the ownership and operation of established manufactured housing communities:

o we may not be able to obtain firancing with favorable terms for community
development which may make us unable to proceed with the development;

o we may be unable to obtain, or face delays in obtaining, necessary zoning,
building and other governmental permits and authorizations, which could
result in increased costs and delays, and even require us to abandon
development of the community entirely if we are unable to obtain such
permits or authorizations;

o we may abandon development opportunities that we have already begun to
explore and as a result we may not recover expenses already incurred in
connection with exploring such development opportunities;

o we may be unable to complete construction and lease-up of a community on
schedule resulting in increased debt service expense and construction costs;

o we may incur construction and development costs for a community which
exceed our original estimates due to increased materials, labor or other costs,
which could make completion of the community uneconomical and we may
not be able to increase rents to compensate for the increase in development
costs which may impact our profitability;

o we may be unable to secure long-term fihancing on completion of
development resulting in increased debt service and lower profitability; and

o occupancy rates and rents at a newly developed community may fluctuate
depending on several factors, including market and economic conditions,
which may result in the community not being profitable.

If any of the above occurred, our business and results of operations could be adversely affected.

We may not be able to integrate or finance our acquisitions and our acquisitions may not
perform as expected.

We acquire and intend to continue to acquire manufactured housing communities on a
select basis. The success and profitability of cur acquisition activities are subject tc the risks of
the acquired community failing to perform as expected based on our analyses of our investment
in the community, and our underestimation of the costs of repositioning, redeveloping or
expanding the acquired community:.




Rent control legislation may harm our ability to increase rents.

State and local rent control laws in certain jurisdictions may limit our ability to increase
rents and to recover increases in operating expenses and the costs of capital improvements.
Enactment of such laws has been considered from time to time in other jurisdictions. Certain
Properties are located, and we may purchase additional properties, in markets that are either
subject to rent control or in which rent-limiting legislation exists or may be enacted.

We may be subject to environmental liability.

Under various federal, state and local laws, ordinances and regulations, an owner or
operator of real estate is liable for the costs of removal or remediation of certain hazardous
substances on, under or in such property. Such laws often impose such liability without regard to
whether the owner knew of, or was responsible for, the presence of such hazardous substances.
The presence of such substances, or the failure to properly remediate such substances, may
adversely affect the owner’s ability to sell or rent such property, to borrow using such property as
collateral or to develop such property. Persons who arrange for the disposal or treatment of
hazardous substances also may be liable for the costs of removal or remediation of such
substances at a disposal or treatment facility owned or operated by another person. In addition,
certain environmental laws impose liability for the management and disposal of
asbestos-containing materials and for the release of such materials into the air. These laws may
provide for third parties to seek recovery from owners or operators of real properties for personal
injury associated with asbestos-containing materials. In connection with the ownership,
operation, management, and development of real properties, we may be considered an owner or
operator of such properties and, therefore, are potentially liable for removal or remediation costs,
and also may be liable for governmental fines and injuries to persons and property. When we
arrange for the treatment or disposal of hazardous substances at landfills or other facilities owned
by other persons, we may be liable for the removal or remediation costs at such facilities.

All of the Properties have been subject to a Phase I or similar environmental audit (which
involves general inspections without soil sampling or ground water analysis) completed by
independent environmental consultants. These environmental audits have not revealed any
significant environmental liability that would have a material adverse effect on our business.
These audits cannot reflect conditions arising after the studies were completed, and no assurances
can be given that existing environmental studies reveal all environmental liabilities, that any
prior owner or operator of a property or neighboring owner or operator did not create any
material environmental condition not known to us, or that a material environmental condition
does not otherwise exist as to any one or more Properties.

Losses in excess of our insurance coverage or uninsured losses could adversely affect our cash
Sflow.

We maintain comprehensive liability, fire, flood (where appropriate), extended coverage,
and rental loss insurance on the Properties with policy specifications, limits, and deductibles
which are customarily carried for similar properties. As a result of market conditions in the
insurance industry, we recently decided to carry a large deductible on our liability insurance. We
expect our exposure under our liability insurance to be limited and we expect losses to be less
than the premium saved by implementing this program. Certain types of losses, however, may be
either uninsurable or not economically insurable, such as losses due to earthquakes, riots, or acts
of war. In the event an uninsured loss occurs, we could lose both our investment in and
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anticipated profits and cash flow from the affected property. Any loss would adversely affect our
ability to repay our debt. In the year 2000, our former insurance carrier filed bankruptcy, and as a
result some or all of the cutstanding and incurred, but not yet reported, claims against our policy
may not be covered which would require us to cover the loss directly. We expect our maximum
exposure associated with this insurance carrier’s bankruptcy to be immaterial and therefore, no
reserve has been provided in the financial statements.

Financing and Imvestmemnt Risks

Our significant amount of debt could limit our operational flexibility or otherwise adversely
affect our financial condition.

We have a significant amount of debt. As of December 31, 2002, we had approximately
$667 million of total debt outstanding, consisting of approximately $270 million in collateralized
debt, and approximately $397 million in unsecured debt. Included in the coliateralized debt
outstanding is $254 million of indebtedness that is collateralized by mortgage liens on 35 of the
Properties (the “Mortgage Debt”). In addition, as of December 31, 2002, we had entered into
two capitalized lease obligations for an aggregate of $16.4 million. Each capitalized lease
obligation involves a lease for a manufactured housing community providing that we will lease
the community for a certain number of years and then have the option to purchase the community
at or prior to the end of the lease term. In each case, if we fail to exercise our purchase right, the
landlord has the right to require us to buy the property at the same price for which we had the
purchase option. If we fail to meet our obligations under the Mortgage Debt, the lender would be
entitled to foreclose on all or some of the Properties securing such debt. If we fail to satisfy our
lease obligations or an obligation to purchase the property, the landlord/seller would be entitied
to evict us from the property. In each event, this could have a material adverse effect on us and
our ability to make expected distributions, and could threaten our continued viability.

We are subject to the risks normally associated with debt financing, including the
following risks:

o our cash flow may be insufficient to meet required payments of principal and
interest, or require us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flow to pay
our debt and the interest associated with our debt rather than to other areas of
our business;

o our existing indebtedness may limit our operating flexibility due to financial
and other restrictive covenants, including restrictions on incurring additional
debt;

o 1t may be more difficult for us to obtain additional financing in the future for
our operations, working capital requirements, capital expenditures, debt

service or other general requirements;

o we may be more vulnerable in the event of adverse economic and industry
conditions or a downturn in our business; and

o we may be placed at a competitive disadvantage compared to our competitors
that have less debt.
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If any of the above risks occurred, our financial condition and results of operations could
be materially adversely affected.

Our advances to Origen subject us to certain risks.

Currently, we (together with one unaffiliated lender and one lender affiliated with Gary
A. Shiffiman, our Chief Executive Officer) provide financing to Origen. The financing provided
to Origen consists of a $48.0 million standby line of credit and a $10.0 million term loan, each
bearing interest at a per annum rate equal to 700 basis peoints over LIBOR, with a minimum
interest rate of 11% and a maximum interest rate of 15%. This credit facility matures December
31, 2003 but is extendable automatically to December 31, 2004 upon the occurrence of certain
events. This credit facility is collateralized by a security interest in Origen’s assets, which is
subordinate in all respects to all institutional indebtedness of Origen, and a guaranty and pledge
of assets by Bingham Financial Services Corporation.

Under the terms of a participation agreement we entered into with the other lenders, we
are obligated to loan up to $35.5 million to Origen under the credit facility (of which
approximately $33.6 million was advanced as of December 31, 2002) and the other lenders are
required to loan up to $22.5 million to Origen under the credit facility and we jointly administer
the credit facility. Under the participation agreement, we are entitied to 43.75% of the first $40.0
million of proceeds from Origen upon repayment of the credit facility and $18.0 million of our
advances to Origen are subordinate in all respects to the first $40.0 million of proceeds from
Origen upon repayment of the credit facility.

Origen’s business has been negatively impacted by the current condition of the
manufactured housing finance industry, illustrated by the bankruptcy filings of Oakwood Homes
Corporation and Conseco, Inc. in the fourth quarter of 2002, In particular, Origen’s business has
suffered as a result of the general economic recession, excessive amounts of repossession
inventory, declining recovery rates in the repossession market and the deteriorating asset-backed
securitization market. Origen’s principal source of liquidity is its securitization program through
which its loans are sold into the asset-backed securities market. Although Origen has
successfully accessed this market in the past, Origen is currently unable to access the asset-
. backed securities market on favorable terms and Origen may not be able to access this market on
terms attractive to Origen in the future. If Origen cannot sell its loans in the asset-backed
securities market on favorable terms and Origen is unable to secure alternative sources of
funding, its business, financial condition and liquidity will be materially adversely affected.

Although we do not believe that our advances to Origen are impaired at this time, we will
continually evaluate the realizability of our advances to Origen in accordance with applicable
accounting standards and we may be required to write-off all or a portion of our advances to
Origen in the future. If we write-off all or a portion of our advances tc Origen in the future, our
results of operations and financial condition could be materially and adversely affected.

In addition, the Origen credit facility subjects us to all of the risks of being a lender.
These risks include the risks relating to borrower delinquency and default and the adequacy of
the collateral for such loans. Because this credit facility is subordinated to certain senior debt of
Origen, in the event Origen is unable to meet its obligations under the senior debt facility, our
right to receive amounts owed to us under our credit facility will be suspended pending payment

-11-




of the amounts owing under the senior debt facility. Because the security interest securing
Origen’s obligations under the credit facility is subordinate to the security interest of certain
senior debt of Origen, in the event of a bankruptcy of Origen, our right to access Origen’s assets
to satisfy the amounts outstanding under the credit facility would be subject to the senior lender’s
prior rights to the same collateral. Moreover, if we choose to advance additional funds to Origen
beyond the $58.0 million credit facility and the other participation lenders do not participate in
such additional advances, these secondary advances will be subordinate to any senior debt of
Origen and subordinate to ail indebtedness of Origen in which all participation lenders have
participated.

The financial condition and solvency of our borrowers and the market value of our properties
may adversely affect our investments in real estate, installment and other loans.

As of December 31, 2002, we had an investment of approximately $38.4 million in real
estate loans to several entities and Properties, some of which are secured by a first lien on the
underlying property, and others which are unsecured loans subordinate to the primary lender.
Also, as of December 31, 2002, we had outstanding approximately $11.6 million in installment
loans to owners of manufactured homes. These installment loans are collateralized by the
manufactured homes. We may invest in additional mortgages and installment loans in the future.
As of December 31, 2002, we had advances of approximately $33.6 million to Origen under a
$58.0 million credit facility. By virtue of our investment in the mortgages and the loans, we are
subject to the following risks of such investment:

o the borrowers may not be able to make debt service payments or pay principal
when due; '

o the value of property securing the mortgages and loans may be less than the
amounts owed; and

o interest rates payable on the mortgages and loans may be lower than our cost
of funds.

If any of the above occurred, our business and results of operations could be adversely affected.
Tax Risks

We may suffer adverse tax consequences and be unable to attract capital if we fail to qualify as a
REIT. '

We believe that since our taxable year ended December 31, 1994, we have been
organized and operated, and intend to continue to operate, so as to qualify for taxation as a REIT
under the Internal Revenue Code. Although we believe that we have been and will continue to
be organized and have operated and will continue to operate so as to qualify for taxation as a
REIT, we cannot assure you that we have been or will continue to be organized or operated in a
manner to so qualify or remain so qualified.

Qualification as a REIT involves the satisfaction of numerous requirements (some on an
annual and quarterly basis) established under highly technical and complex Code provisions for

which there are only limited judicial or administrative interpretations, and involves the
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determination of various factual matters and circumstances not entirely within our control. In
addition, frequent changes occur in the area of REIT taxation, which require the Company
continually to monitor its tax status. In one recent change, Congress modified the asset test
applicable to REITs and the Code now provides that for taxable years beginning after December
31, 2000, REITs may own more than ten percent of the voting power and value of securities of a
taxable REIT subsidiary (“TRS”). A corporation is treated as a TRS if a REIT owns stock in the
corporation and the REIT and the corporation jointly elect such treatment. Effective July 1,
2001, we made a TRS election for SHS. During the period from January 1, 2001 through June
30, 2001, we believe that SHS met certain grandfather rules permitting REITs indirectly to own
more than ten percent of the value of a corporation, without violating any REIT asset tests.
Nevertheless, we cannot assure you that the Internal Revenue Service would not determine that
SHS failed to meet one or more of the highly technical grandfather rules during this period.

Jaffe, Raitt, Heuer & Weiss, P.C. has delivered an opinion to us to the effect that, based
on various assumptions and qualifications set forth in the opinion, Sun Communities, Inc. has
been organized and has operated in conformity with the requirements for qualification as a REIT
under the Code for its taxable years ended December 31, 1994 through December 31, 2002. The
opinion is expressed as of its date and Jaffe, Raitt, Heuer & Weiss, P.C. has no obligation to
advise us of any change in applicable law or of any change in matters stated, represented or
assumed after the date of such opinion. Furthermore, we cannot assure you that the Internal
Revenue Service would not decide differently from the views expressed in counsel’s opinion and
such opinion represents only the best judgment of counsel and is not binding on the Internal
Revenue Service or the courts.

If we fail to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year, we would be subject to federal income
tax (including any applicable alternative minimum tax) on our taxable income at regular
corporate rates. Moreover, unless entitled to relief under certain statutory provisions, we also
would be disqualified from treatment as a REIT for the four taxable years following the year
during which qualification was lost. This treatment would reduce our net earnings available for
investment or distribution to stockholders because of the additional tax liability to us for the
years involved. In addition, distributions to stockholders would no longer be required to be
made. Even if we qualify for and maintain our REIT status, we will be subject to certain federal,
state and local taxes on our property and certain of our operations.

We intend for the Operating Partnership to qualify as a partnership, but we cannot guarantee
that it will qualify.

We believe that the Operating Partnership has been organized as a partnership and will
qualify for treatment as such under the Code. However, if the Operating Partnership is deemed to
be a “publicly traded partnership,” it will be treated as a corporation instead of a partnership for
federal income tax purposes unless at least 90% of its income is qualifying income as defined in
the Internal Revenue Code. The income requirements applicable to REITs and the definition of
“qualifying income” for purposes of this 90% test are similar in most respects. Qualifying
income for the 90% test generally includes passive income, such as specified types of real
property rents, dividends and interest. We believe that the Operating Partnership would meet this
90% test, but we cannot guarantee that it would. If the Operating Partnership were to be taxed as
a corporation, it would incur substantial tax liabilities, we would fail to qualify as a REIT for

federal income tax purposes, and our ability to raise additional capital could be significantly
impaired.

Our ability to accumulate cash is restricted due to certain REIT distribution requirements.
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In order to qualify as a REIT, we must distribute to our stockholders at least 90% of our
REIT taxable income (calculated without any deduction for dividends paid and excluding net
capital gain) and to avoid federal income taxation, our distributions must not be less than 100%
of our REIT taxable income, including capital gains. As a result of the distribution requirements,
we do not expect to accumulate significant amounts of cash. Accordingly, these distributions
could significantly reduce the cash available to us in subsequent pericds to fund our operations
and future growth, ’

Business Risks

Some of our directors and officers may have conflicts of interest with respect to certain related
party transactions and other business interests. ‘

Ownership of SHS. Gary A. Shiffman, the President, Chief Executive Officer and
Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company, and the Estate of Miiton M.
Shiffman (former Chairman of the Board), are the owners of all of the outstanding
common stock of SHS, and as such are entitled to 5% of the cash flow from the operating
activities of SHS (we own 100% of the non-voting preferred stock which entities us to
95% of such cash flow). Arthur A. Weiss, one of our directors, is also a personal
representative of the Estate.

For certain tax reasons, we made our equity investment in Origen through SUI
TRS, Inc., a taxable REIT subsidiary (“TRS”), which is wholly owned by SHS. We
contributed $15.0 million to SHS in connection with the Origen investment and, as the
holder of all of the non-voting preferred stock of SHS, we are entitled to 95% of the cash
flow from the operating activities of SHS, including the operating activities of the TRS,
and effectively an approximate 30% interest in Origen. As part of the $5.0 million
investment in Origen by Mr. Shiffiman and members of his family, Mr. Shiffman and the
Estate contributed approximately $790,000 to SHS as part of the investment in Origen by
TRS, and, as the holders of all of the voting common stock of SHS, they are entitled to
5% of the cash flow from the operating activities of SHS, including the operating
activities of the TRS, and effectively an approximate 1.6% indirect interest in Origen.
The balance of the Shiffman family’s $5.0 million investment in Origen was made
through a separate family owned entity which holds 8.4% of the Shiffman family’s
aggregate 10% interest.

Thus, in all transactions involving SHS, Mr. Shiffman and Mr. Weiss may have a
conflict of interest with respect to their respective cbligations as an officer and/or director
of the Company and Mr. Shiffiman’s right and the Estate’s right to receive a portion of the
cash flow from the operating activities of SHS. The following are the current transactions
and agreements involving SHS which may present a conflict of interest for Mr. Shiffian
and Mr. Weiss:

o the agreement between SHS and us for sales, brokerage, and leasing services;
o the intercompany loans from the Operating Partnership to SHS;
o the investment in Origen by SUI TRS, Inc., a Wholly owned subsidiary of
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SHS; and

o the ownership and operation of SHS’s other subsidiaries, including Sun Water
Oak Golf, Inc.

The failure to negotiate these and other transactions or agreements involving SHS
on an arm’s length basis, or to enforce the material terms of any agreement or
arrangement between SHS and us could have an adverse effect on us.

Tax Conseguences Upon Sale of Properties. Gary A. Shiffman holds limited
partnership interests in the Operating Partnership which were received in connection with
the contribution of 24 properties from partnerships previously affiliated with him (the
“Sun Partnerships™). Prior to any redemption of these limited partnership interests for our
common stock, Mr. Shiffian will have tax consequences different from those of us and
our public stockholders on the sale of any of the Sun Partnerships. Therefore, Mr.
Shiffman and the Company may have different objectives regarding the appropriate
pricing and timing of any sale of those properties.

- Lease of Executive Offices. On November 1, 2002, we leased approximately
31,300 rentable square feet of office space from American Center LLC and we expect to
relocate our principal executive offices to this office space in the second quarter of 2003.
Gary A. Shiffman, together with certain family members, indirectly owns approximately a
21% equity interest in American Center LLC. This lease is for an initial term of five
years and we have the right to extend the lease for an additional five year term. The
annual base rent under this lease begins at $19.25 per square foot {(gross) for the first lease
year and increases $0.50 per square foot for each successive year of the initial term. Mr.
Shiffman may have a conflict of interest with respect to his obligations as an officer
and/or director of the Company and his ownership interest in American Center.

We rely on key management.

We are dependent on the efforts of our executive officers, particularly Gary A. Shiffman,
Jeffrey P. Jorissen, Brian W. Fannon and Jonathan M. Colman (together, the “Senior Officers™).
While we believe that we could find replacements for these key personnel, the loss of their
services could have a temporary adverse effect on our operations. We do not currently maintain
or contemplate obtaining any “key-man” life insurance on the Senior Officers.

In addition, upon the death or disability of Mr. Shiffman, we could lose the right to
appoint a Manager of Crigen or otherwise vote our interests in Origen, which could adversely
affect our investment in Origen.

Certain provisions in our governing documents may make it difficult for a third-party to acquire
us.

9.8% Ownership Limit. In order to qualify and maintain our qualification as a
REIT, not more than 50% of the outstanding shares of our capital stock may be owned,
directly or indirectly, by five or fewer individuals. Thus, ownership of more than 9.8% of
our outstanding shares of common stock by any single stockholder has been restricted,
with certain exceptions, for the purpose of maintaining our qualification as a REIT under
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the Internal Revenue Code. Such restrictions in our charter do not apply to Gary
Shiffman, the Estate of Milton M. Shiffman and Robert B. Bayer, a former director and
officer of the Company. '

The 9.8% ownership limit, as well as our ability to issue additional shares of
common stock or shares of other stock (which may have rights and preferences over the
common stock), may discourage a change of control of the Company and may also: (1)
deter tender offers for the common stock, which offers may be advantageous to
stockholders; and (2) limit the opportunity for stockholders to receive a premium for their
common stock that might otherwise exist if an investor were attempting to assemble a
block of common stock in excess of 9.8% of the outstanding shares of the Company or
otherwise effect a change of control of the Company.

Staggered Board. QOur Board of Directors has been divided into three classes of
directors. The term of one class will expire each year. Directors for each class will be
chosen for a three-year term upon the expiration of such class’s term, and the directors in
the other two classes will continue in office. The staggered terms for directors may affect
the stockholders’ ability to change contrel of the Company even if a change in control
were in the stockholders’ interest.

Preferred Stock. QOur charter authorizes the Board of Directors to issue up to
10,000,000 shares of preferred stock and to establish the preferences and rights (including
the right to vote and the right to convert intc shares of commen stock) of any shares
issued. The power to issue preferred stock could have the effect of delaying or preventing
a change in control of the Company even if a change in control were in the stockholders’
interest..

Rights Plan. We adopted a stockholders’ rights plan in 1998 that provides our
stockholders (other than a stockholder attempting tc acquire a 15% or greater interest in
the Company) with the right to purchase stock in the Company at a discount in the event
any person attempis to acquire a 15% or greater interest in the Company. Because this
plan could make it more expensive for a person to acquire a controliing interest in the
Company, it could have the effect of delaying or preventing a change in control of the
Company even if a change in control were in the stockholders’ interest.

Changes in our investment and financing policies may be made without stockholder approval.

Our investment and financing policies, and our policies with respect to certain other
activities, including our growth, debt, capitalization, distributions, REIT status, and operating
policies, are determined by cur Board of Directors. Although the Board of Directors has no
present intention to do so, these policies may be amended or revised from time to time at the
discretion of the Board of Directors without notice to or a vote of our stockholders. Accordingly,
stockholders may not have control cver changes in our policies and changes in our policies may
not fully serve the interests of all stockholders.

Substantial sales of our common stock could cause our stock price to fall.

Sales of a substantial number of shares of cur common stock, or the perception that such
sales could occur, could adversely affect prevailing market prices for shares. As of December
31, 2002, up to 3,259,601 shares of our common stock may be issued in the future to the limited
partners of the Operating Parinership in exchange for their Common or Preferred OP Units. The
limited partners may sell such shares pursuant to registration rights or an available exemption
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from registration. Also, Water Oak, Ltd., a former owner of one of the Properties, will be issued
Common OP Units with a value of approximately $1,000,000 annually through 2007. In 2008
and 2009, Water Oak, Ltd. will be issued Common OP Units with a value of approximately
$1,200,000. In addition, as of December 31, 2002, options to purchase 975,767 shares of our
common stock were outstanding under our 1993 Employee Stock Option Plan, our 1993 Non-
Employee Director Stock Option Plan and our Long-Term Incentive Plan (the “Plans”) and an
additional 150,519 shares have been reserved for issuance pursuant to the Plans. No prediction
can be made regarding the effect that future sales of shares of our common stock will have on the
market price of shares.

An increase in interest rates may have an adverse effect on the price of our common stock.

One of the factors that may influence the price of our common stock in the public market
will be the annual distributions to stockholders relative to the prevailing market price of the
common stock. An increase in market interest rates may tend to make the common stock less
attractive relative to other investments, which could adversely affect the market price of our
common stock.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

General. As of December 31, 2002, the Properties consisted of 117 manufactured
housing communities, five recreational vehicle communities, and seven properties containing
both manufactured housing and recreational vehicle sites located in seventeen states concentrated
in the midwestern and .southeastern United States. As of December 31, 2002, the Properties
contained 43,959 developed sites comprised of 38,832 developed manufactured home sites and
5,127 recreational vehicle sites and an additional 7,642 manufactured home sites suitable for
development. Most of the Properties include amenities oriented towards family and retirement
living. Of the 129 Properties, 60 have more than 300 developed manufactured home sites, with
the largest having 913 developed manufactured home sites.

As of December 31, 2002, the Properties had an occupancy rate of 92.4 percent in
stabilized communities and 64.8 percent in development communities and the aggregate
occupancy rate was 90 percent excluding recreational vehicle sites. Since January 1, 2002, the
Properties have averaged an aggregate annual turnover of homes (where the home is moved out
of the community) of approximately 3.8 percent and an average annual turnover of residents
(where the home is sold and remains within the community, typically without interruption of
rental income) of approximately 7.1 percent.

We believe that our Properties’ high amenity levels contribute to low turnover and
generally high occupancy rates. All of the Properties provide residents with attractive amenities
with most offering a clubhouse, a swimming pool, laundry facilities and cable television service.
Many Properties offer additional amenities such as sauna/whirlpool spas, tennis, shufflieboard
and basketball courts and/or exercise rooms.
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We have tried to concentrate our communities within certain geographic areas in crder to achieve
economies of scale in management and operation. The Properties are principally concentrated in
the midwestern and southeastern United States. We believe that geographic diversification will
help insulate the portfolic from regional economic influences and we are interested in expanding
our operations in the western United States.

The following table sets forth certain information relating to the properties owned as of

December 31, 2002:
Developed  QOccupancy Occupancy Occupancy
Sites as of As of as of As of
Property and Location 12/31/02 12/31/00(1) 12/31/01¢(1)  12/31/02(1)
MIDWEST
Michigan
Academy/West Pointe 441 99% 98% 98%
Canton, M}
Allendale Meadows Mobile Village 352 98% 96% 93%
Allendale, Ml
Alpine Meadows Mobile Village 403 99% 96% 96%
Grand Rapids, MI
Bedford Hills Mobile Village 339 98% 98% 95%
Battle Creek, MI
Brentwood Mobile Village 195 99% 99% 96%
Kentwood, MI
Byron Center Mobile Village 143 99% 98% 98%
Byron Center, MI
Candlewick Court Manufactured Housing 211 95% 97% 97%
Community
Owosso, MI
College Park Estates Manufactured Housing 230 --100% 95% 92%
Community
Canton, MI
Continental Estates Manufactured Housing 385 84% 84% 79%
Community
Davison, Ml
Continental North Manufactured Housing 474 88% 89% 84%
Community
Davison, MI
Country Acres Mobile Village 182 96% 96% 95%
Cadillac, M1
Country Meadows Mobile Village 577 100% 99% 98%
Flat Rock, M1 .
Countryside Village Manufactured Housing 359 96% 98% 96%
Community
Perry, MI
Creekwood Meadows Mobile Home Park 336 96% 88% 85%
Burton, Ml
Cutler Estates Mobile Village 259 98% 97% 96%
Grand Rapids, Ml
Davison East Manufactured Housing Community 190 89% 80% 88%
Davison, MI
Fisherman's Cove Manufactured Housing 162 99% 95% 94%
Community
Flint, MI
Grand Mobile Estates 230 99% 93% 95%
Grand Rapids, MI
Hamlin Manufactured Housing Community (5) 170 100% 99% 85%(5)
Webberville, M1
Kensington Meadows Mobile Home Park 290 97% 98% 92%
Lansing, MI
Kings Court Mobile Village 639 98% 100% 98%
Traverse City, MI
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Property and Location
Knollwood Estates
Allendale, MI
Lafayette Place
Metro Detroit, MI
Lincoln Estates Mobile Home Park
Holland, M1
Maple Grove Estates Manufactured Housing
Community
Dorr, MI
Meadow Lake Estates Manufactured Housing
Community
White Lake, MI
Meadowbrook Estates Manufactured Housing
Community
Monroe, M1
Meadowstream Village Manufactured Housing
Community
Sodus, MI
Parkwood Manufactured Housing Community
Grand Blanc, MI
Presidential Estates Mobile Village
Hudsonville, M1
Richmond Place
Metro Detroit, M1
River Haven Village
Grand Haven, MI
Scio Farms Estates
Ann Arbor, MI

Sherman Oaks Manufactured Housing Community

Jackson, M1
St. Clair Place

Metro Detroit, MI
Sunset Ridge (9)

Portland Township, MI
Timberline Estates Manufactured Housing
Community

Grand Rapids, MI
Town & Country Mobile Village

Traverse City, MI
Village Trails

Howard City, MI
White Lake Mobile Home Village (5)

White Lake, MI
White Oak Estates

Mt. Morris, MI
Windham Hills Estates (5)

Jackson, MI
Woodhaven Place

Metro Detroit, MI
Michigan Total

Indiana

Brookside Mobile Home Village
Goshen, IN

Carrington Pointe
Ft. Wayne, IN

Clear Water Mobile Village
South Bend, IN

Developed
Sites as of
12/31/02
161
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254

191

46

425

453

159

249

364

117

721

913

366

100

144

296

192

100

315

480

402

QOccupancy Occupancy Occupancy
As of as of As of
12/31/06(1y 12/31/01(1) 12/31/02(1)
3) 97% 94%
98% 97% 98%
99% 96%, 95%
100% 100% 98%
100% 100% 97%
99% 98% 97%
98% 97% 95%
93% 90% 86%
98% 99% 95%
99% 97% 100%
3) 78% 79%
100% 99% 99%
99% 97% 94%
99% 100% 99%
©) 13%(9) 45%(9)
100% 96% 94%
99% 99% 99%
77% 77% 80%
100% 85%(5) 96%
85% 88% 86%
88% 91% 82%(5)
99% 100% 98%
%% 94% 2%
93% 93% 88%
89% 81% 81%
95% 90% 86%




Property and Location

Cobus Green Mobile Home Park
Elkhart, IN

Deerfield Run Manufactured Home

Community (5)
Anderson, IN

Four Seasons Mobile Home Park
Elkhart, IN

Holiday Mobile Home Village
Elkhart, IN

Liberty Farms Communities
Valparaiso, IN

Maplewood Mobile Home Park
Lawrence, IN

Meadows Mobile Home Park
Nappanee, IN

Pebble Creek(9) (10)
Greenwood, IN

Pine Hills Mobile Home Subdivision
Middlebury, IN

Roxbury Park
Goshen, IN

Timberbrook Mobile Home Park
Bristol, IN

Valley Brook Mobile Home Park
Indianapolis, IN

West Glen Village Mobile Home Park
Indianapolis, IN

Woodlake Estates (5)
Ft. Wayne, IN

Woods Edge Mobile Village (5)
West Lafayette, IN

Indiana Total

OTHER
Apple Creek Manufactured Home Community and
Self Storage
Cincinnati, OH
Autumn Ridge Mobile Home Park
Ankeny, 1A
Bell Crossing Manufactured Home
Community (5)
Clarksville, TN
Boulder Ridge (5)
Pflugerville, TX
Branch Creek Estates
Austin, TX
Byrne Hill Village Manufactured Home
Community
Toledo, OH
Candlelight Village Mobile Home Park
Chicago Heights, IL
Casa del Valle (8)
Alamo, TX
Catalina Mobile Home Park
Middletown, OH
Chisholm Point Estates
Pflugerville, TX

Developed  Occupancy Occupancy Ceccupancy
Sites as of As of as of As of
12/31/02 12/31/00¢1y  12/31/01¢(1Y  12/31/02(1)
386 94% 87% 81%
175 75%(5) 60%(5) 73%(5)
218 96% 98% 95%
326 99% 97% 95%
220 100% 98% 99%
207 94% 91% 97%
330 95% 89% 85%
258 (10) (10) 76%(9)
130 91% 96% 95%
398 3) 92% 94%
567 90% 90% 84%
799 95% 95% 88%
552 99% 98% 96%
338 67% (5) 69%(5) 72%(5)
598 93%(5 84%(5) 74%(5)
6,619 2%- 20% 86%
17.6 98% 91% 94%
413 100% 99% 98%
239 84% 53%(5) 41%(5)
527 98% 98% 85%(5)
392 99% 100% 98%
236 97% 97% 96%
309 96% 98% 95%
408 100% 100% 100%
462 90% 83% 83%
416 99% 98% 94%
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- Property and {.ocation

Comal Farms(9) (10}
New Braunfels, TX

Creekside(9) (10)
Reidsville, NC

Desert View Village (9)
West Wendover, NV

Eagle Crest (9)
Firestone, CO

East Fork(9) (10)
Batavia, OH

Edwardsville Mobile Home Park
Edwardsville, KS

Forest Meadows
Philomath, OR

Glen Laurel(9) (10)
Concord, NC

High Pointe
Frederica, DE

Kenwood RV and Mobile Home Plaza (8)
LaFeria, TX

Meadowbrook(9) (10)
Charlotte, NC

North Point Estates (9)
Pueblo, CO

Oak Crest(9)
Austin, TX

Oakwood Village (5)
Dayton, OH

Orchard Lake Manufactured Home Community

Cincinnati, OH
Paradise Park
Chicago Heights, IL
Pecan Branch (9)
Williamson County, TX
Pheasant Ridge
Manor Township, PA
Pin Oak Parc Mobile Home Park
O'Fallon, MO
Pine Ridge Mobile Home Park
Petersburg, VA
River Ridge (9)
Austin, TX
Saddle Brook (9)
Austin, TX
Sea Air (8)
Rehoboth Beach, DE
Snow to Sun (8)
Weslaco, TX
Southfork Mobile Home Park
Belton, MO
Stonebridge(9) (10)
San Antonio, TX
Summit Ridge(9) (10)
Converse, TX
Sunset Ridge(9) (10)
Kyle TX
Sun Villa Estates
Reno, NV

Developed
Sites as of
12/31/02
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349

47

93

151

160

634

76

262

411

289

177

108

335

511

147

277

69

553

502

245

337

258

527

493

477

206

127

173

324

QOccupancy Occupancy Occupancy

As of as of As of
12/31/00(1)  12/31/61(1) 12/31/02(1)
(10) (10) 43%(9)
(10 (10) 66%(9)
6%(9) 25%(9) 40%(9)
(3) 84%(9) 97%(9)
(10 (10) 88%(9)
97% 97% 92%
88% 83% 92%
(10) (10) 18%(9)
95% 93% 95%
100% 100% 100%
(10) (10) 80%(9)
®) 38%(9) 50%(9)
1G] 4 84%(9)
78%(5) 73%(5) 74%(5)
98% 97% 97%
99% 96% 91%
3) 67%(9) 74%(9)
) Q) 99%
98% 99% 97%
98% 98% 95%
) 4 89%(9)
@ @ 39%(9)
100% 99% 100%
99% 100% 99%
96% 95% 90%
(10 10) 83%(9)
(10) (10) 91%(9)
(10) (10) 71%(9)
100% 100% 99%




Developed  Occupancy Occupancy Occupancy

Sites as of Asof as of As of
Property and Location 12/31/02 12/31/00(1)  12/31/01¢1) 12/31/02(1)
Timber Ridge Mobile Home Park 585 98% 99% 98%
Ft. Collins, CO ’
Westbrook Village (7) 344 98% 99% 97%
_ Toledo, OH
Westbrook Senior Village 112 3) 94% 99%
Toledo, OH
Willowbrook Place (7) 266 98% 98%
Toledo, OH ’
Woodlake Trails(9) (10) 133 (10) 44%(9)
San Antonio, TX
Woodland Park Estates 399 98% 94%
Eugene, OR
Woodside Terrace Manufactured Home 96%
Community
Holland, OH
Worthington Arms Mobile Home Park 224 99% 9% 96%
Delaware, OH
Other Total 86%
SOQUTHEAST
Florida .
Arbor Terrace RV Park 402 6) 6) ©)
Bradenton, FL
Ariana Village Mobile Home Park 208 85% 86% 88%
Lakeland, FL
Bonita Lake Resort 167 (6) (6) ©)
Bonita Springs, FL
Buttonwood Bay (8) 941 3) 100% 100%
Sebring, FL
Gold Coaster Manufactured Home Community (8) 546 100% 100% 98%
Florida City, FL ‘
Groves RV Resort 306 ©) ©6) )
Lee County, FL
Holly Forest Estates 402 100% 100% 100%
Holly Hill, FL
Indian Creek Park (8) 1,546 100% 100% 100%
Ft. Myers Beach, FL
Island Lakes Mobile Home Park 301 100% 100% 100%
Merritt Island, FL
Kings Lake Mobile Home Park . 245 96% 99% 100%
Debary, FL
Lake Juliana Landings Mobile Home Park 287 71% 74% 77%
Auburndale, FL
Lake San Marino RV Park 415 6) ©) ©6)
Naples, FL
Leesburg Landing 96 68% - 68% 69%
Lake County, FL
Meadowbrook Village Mobile Home Park 257 98% 99% 99%
Tampa, FL
Orange Tree Village Mobile Home Park 246 99% C o 100% 100%
Orange City, FL
Royal Country Mobile Home Park 864 100% 99% 100%
Miami, FL ‘
Saddle Oak Club Mobile Home Park 376 99% 100% 100%
Ocala, FL
Siesta Bay RV Park 850 (3] (6) 6)
Ft. Myers Beach, FL
Silver Star Mobile Village 408 96% 98% 99%
Orlando, FL
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Developed  Occupancy Qccupancy Qccupancy

Sites as of As of as of As of
Property and Location 12/31/02 12/31/001)  12/31/01¢1y 12/31/02(1)
Water Oak Country Club Estates/Water Oak Mobile 844 100% 100% 100%
Home Park
Lady Lake, FL

Florida Total 9,707 94% 6% 97%
TOTAL/AVERAGE 43,959 95% 93% 90%
TOTAL STABILIZED COMMUNITIES 40,407 5% 94% 92%
TOTAL DEVELOPMENT COMMUNITIES 3,552 6% 45% 65%

(1) Occupancy percentage relates to manufactured housing sites, excluding
recreational vehicle sites.

2) Acquired in 2000.

(3)  Acquired in 2001.

4) Acquired in 2002.

(6)  Occupancy in these properties reflects the fact that these communities are in their
initial lease-up phase following an expansion.

(6)  This Property contains only recreational vehicle sites.

(7)  The Company leases this Property. The Company has the option and intends to
purchase the Property upon the expiration of the lease. If the Company does not
exercise its option to purchase, the lessor has the right to cause the Company to
purchase the Property at the expiration of the lease at the then outstanding lease
obligation.

(8)  This Property contains recreational vehicle sites.

&) Occupancy in these properties reflects the fact that these communities are newly
developed from the ground up.

(10)  This Property is owned by an affiliate of Sunchamp LLC, an entity in which the
Company owns approximately a 59% equity interest as of December 31, 2002.
Prior to 2002, the Company held a minority interest in Sunchamp LLC and,
therefore, did not treat this Property as a Property owned by the Company. As a
result, the Company did not report any information in respect of this Property for
such periods.

Leases. The typical lease we enter into with a tenant for the rental of a site is
month-to-month or year-to-year, renewable upon the consent of both parties, or, in some
instances, as provided by statute. In some cases, leases are for one-year terms, with up ic ten
renewal options exercisable by the tenant, with rent adjusted for increases in the consumer price
index. These leases are cancelable for non-payment of rent, violation of community rules and
regulations or other specified defaults. During the past five years, on average 3.1 percent of the
homes in our communities have been removed by their owners and eight percent of the homes
have been sold by their owners to a new owner who then assumes rental obligations as a
community resident. The small percentage of homes removed from our communities is impacted
by the $3,000 to $8,000 cost to move a home. The above experience can be summarized as
follows: the average resident remains in our communities for approximately nine years, while the
average home, which gives rise to the rental stream, remains in our communities for
approximately thirty-two years. See “Regulations and Insurance.”
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On March 21, 2003, the Company received an unfiled complaint by T.J. Heldings, LLC
~ (“TJ Holdings™), a member of Sun/Forest, LLC (“Sun/Forest”) (which, in turn, owns an equity
interest in SunChamp LLC), against the Company, SunChamp LLC, certain other affiliates of the
Company and two directors of Sun Communities, Inc. The unfiled complaint alleges that the
defendants wrongfully deprived the plaintiff of economic opportunities that they took for
themselves in confravention of duties allegedly owed to the plaintiff and purports to claim
damages of $13.0 million plus an unspecified amount for punitive damages. We believe the
unfiled complaint and the claims threatened therein have no merit and, if this complaint is
ultimately filed, we intend to defend it vigorously.

We are involved in various other legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of

business. All such proceedings, taken together, are not expected to have a material adverse
impact on our results of operations or financial condition.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of the Company’s security holders during the fourth
quarter of the fiscal year covered by this report.




PART II

FTEM S. MARKET FOR THE COMPANY'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Market Information

Our common stock has been listed on the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) since
December 8, 1993 under the symbol “SUL” On March 3, 2003, the closing sales price of the
common stock was $34.73 and the common stock was held by approximately 650 holders of
record. The following table sets forth the high and low closing sales prices per share for the
common stock for the periods indicated as reported by the NYSE and the distributions paid by
the Company with respect to each such period.

High Low Distribution

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2001

First Quarter of 2001 . ... 34.69 30.80 53

Second Quarter of 2001 .. .......coocooiiice e 35.50 31.60 535

Third Quarter 0f 2001 | ... 36.85 34.73 55

Fourth Quarter of 2001 ..o 38.55 36.00 .55
Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2002

First Quarter of 2002, ........c...cccoocvrienrnseneneersisee s 40.19 36.73 .55

Second Quarter 0f 2002 ..o 42.60 39.00 58

Third Quarter 0f 2002, . ..o, 41.93 33.50 .58

Fourth Quarter of 2002 ... ..........ccooovvvvirereereee e 37.00 3225 .58

Recent Sales Of Unregistered Securities

On January 2, 2002, the Operating Partnership issued 100,000 Series B-2 Preferred Units
at par of $45.00 to Bay Area Limited Partnership and assumed approximately $6,812,500 of debt,
in exchange for property with a net agreed upon value of $15,000,000 (the “Series B-2 Units”).
Holders of the Series B-2 Units may require the Operating Partnership to redeem all of the
outstanding Series B-2 Units within the ninety (90) day period following the fifth anniversary of
the Series B-2 Unit issuance date, the death of Bay Area’s president, or the occurrence of a
change of control as defined in the Operating Partnership’s limited partnership agreement, but in
no event may the Series B-2 Unit holders require the redemption of the Series B-2 Units prior to
January 31, 2007. The redemption price is $45.00 per Series B-2 Unit redeemed. In addition,
holders of the Series B-2 Units may convert such units into Common OP Units at a conversion
price of $45 per unit within the ninety (90) day period following the third anniversary of the
Series B-2 Unit issuance date.

On December 1, 2002, the Operating Partnership issued 55,200 Series B-3 Preferred
Units to ten members of Woodside Terrace, LTD, paid approximately $1,000,000 in cash and
assumed approximately $2,230,000 of debt, which was immediately retired, in exchange for
property with a net agreed upon value of $8,750,000 . Holders of the Series B-3 Units may
redeem the Series B-3 Units (a) within the ninety (90) day period following each of the fifth,
sixth, seventh, eighth, ninth and tenth anniversaries of the issuance date, (b) in the event of the
death of a holder, and (c) at any time after the tenth anniversary. The redemption price is $100
per Series B-3 Unit. The Operating Partnership has the right to redeem the Series B-3 Units at
any time after the tenth anniversary.
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On January 2, 2003, the Operating Partnership issued 41,700 Series B-3 Preferred Units
to the members of Willowbrook Co., Ltd, paid approximately $860,00C in cash and assumed
approximately $1,570,000 of debt, which was immediately retired, in exchange for property with
a net agreed upon value of $6,600,000. Holders of the Series B-3 Units may redeem the Series B-
3 Units (a) within the ninety (90) day period following each of the fifth, sixth, seventh, eighth,
ninth and tenth anniversaries of the issuance date, (b) in the event of the death of a holder, and (c)
at any time afier the tenth anniversary. The redemption price is $100 per Series B-3 Unit. The
Operating Partnership has the right to redeem the Series B-3 Units at any time after the tenth
anniversary.

In 2002, the Company issued an aggregate of 83,892 shares of its common stock upon
conversion of an aggregate of 83,892 OP Units.

All of the above OP Units and shares of common stock were issued in private placements
in reliance on Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, including Regulation D
promulgated thereunder. No underwriters were used in connection with any of such issuances.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table reflects information about the securities authorized for issuance
under the Company’s equity compensation plans as of December 31, 2002.

@ ®) ©
Number of securities
remaining available
Number of securities for future issuance
to be issued upon Weighted-average under equity
exercise of exercise price of compensation plans
| outstanding options, | outstamding options, | (excluding securities
Plan Category warrants and rights | warrants and rights | reflected in column (&)
Equity compensation
plans approved by
shareholders 858,388 $27.92 150,519
Equity compensation
plans not approved
by shareholders (1) 117,379 $32.75 0
TOTAL 975,767 $28.50 150,519

(1) On May 29, 1997, the Company established a Long Term Incentive Plan (the “LTIP”)
pursuant to which all full-time salaried and full-time commission only employees of the
Company, excluding the Company’s officers, were entitled to receive options to purchase
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shares of the Company’s common stock at $32.75 per share (i.e., the average of the
highest and lowest selling prices for the common stock on May 29, 1997), on January 31,
2002. In accordance with the terms of the LTIP, (a) the Company granted the eligible
participants options to purchase 167,918 shares of common stock; and (b) each eligible
participant received an option to purchase a number of shares of common stock equal to
the product of 167,918 and the quotient derived by dividing such participant’s total
compensation during the period beginning on January 1, 1997 and ending on December
31, 2001 (the “Award Period”) by the aggregate compensation of all of the eligible
participants during the Award Period.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

SUN COMMUNITIES, INC.

Year Ended December 31,
2002 2001° __ 2000° 1999 _ 1998“

—

(In thousands except for per share and other data)

Operating data:

Revenues:
Income from property $151,612 §$ 138,687 §$ 132,129 § 125,137 $§ 114,077
Other income 10.684 14,401 13,498 7.804 3,837

162,296 153.088 145,627 132,941 117.914

Expenses:
Property operating and maintenance | 33,387 28,972 28,408 27,122 25,484
Real estate taxes 10,542 9,492 9,083 8,850 8,699
Property management 2,502 2,746 2,934 2,638 2,269
General and administrative 5,220 4,627 4,079 3,682 3,339
Depreciation and amortization 38,525 33,320 30,487 28,388 24 819
Interest 32.375 31,016 29,651 27.289 23.987

122,551 110.173 104,642 97.969 88,597

Total expenses

Income before equity income (loss) from
affiliates, minority interests,
discontinued operations, and gain
from property dispositions, net ..........

Equity income (loss} from affiliates

Income before minority interests,
discontinued operations, and gain from
property dispositions, net

39,745 42,915 40,985 34,972 29,317
(16,627)® 131 607 1,726 2.147

23,118 43,046 41,592 36,698 31,464

..................

Income allocated tc minority interests ., 9,806 13,346 13.022 8.359 5.966
Income from continuing operations .. ...... 13,312 29,700 28,570 28,339 25,498
Income (loss) from discontinued operations 280 (65) an 79 (57)
Gain from property dispositions, net........ — 4,275 4,801 829 655®
Netincome ..o $ 13592 § 3391¢ § 33294 3 29,089 § 26,096

Basic earnings per share:

Continuing operations $ 075 % 196 $ 192 § 169 § 1.55

Discontinued operations 0.62 — — — —

Net Income $§ 077 % 1.96 $ 192 § 169 §$§ 155

Diluted earnings per share:

Continuing operations $§ 074 % 194 $ 191 § 168 § 1.55

Discontinued operations . .................. 0.02 — — — —

NetIncome...........cccoooouerveernrecnirinnans § 076 § 1.94 § 191 § 1.68 §$ 1.55
Weighted average common shares

outstanding:

Basic e 17,595 17,258 17.304 17,191 16,856

Diluted ..., 17,781 17,440 17,390 17,343 17,031

$§ 229 § 218 $ 210 § 202 § 194

................
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

SUN COMMUNITIES, INC.

Balance sheet data:

Rental property, before accumulated
depreciation

Total assets

Total debt ..o,

Stockholders’ equity..........ccoocrvrevncirnnreen.

Other data (at end of period):

Total properties

Total sites

.......................................

...........................................

(2)

investment in Origen.
®

©

Year Ended December 31,

2002

2001©

2000©

1999

1998

(In thousands except for per share and other data)

$1,174,837
$1,163,976
$ 667,373
§ 319,532

129
43,959

$ 969,936
$ 994,449
$ 495,198
$ 329,641

116
40,544

$ 867,377
$ 966,628
$ 464,508
§ 336,034

109
38,282

Includes an $875 expense related to an unsuccessful portfolio acquisition.
Revenues and expenses for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000, 1999 and 1998 have been

$ 847,696
$ 904,032
$ 401,564
$ 338,358

110
38,217

$ 803,152
$ 821,439
$ 365,164
$ 340,364

104
37,566

Included in equity income (loss) from affiliates in 2002 is a $13.6 million write-off of the Company’s

restated to conform with SFAS No. 144 which requires operations of properties sold or held for sale to
be reclassified as discontinued operations.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL

CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview

The following discussion and analysis of the consclidated financial condition and results
of operations should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and notes
thereto elsewhere herein.

The Company is a fully integrated, self-administered and self-managed REIT which
owns, operates, develops and finances manufactured housing communities concentrated in the
midwestern and southeastern United States. As of December 31, 2002, the Company cwned and
operated a portfolic of 129 developed properties located in seventeen states, including 117
manufactured housing communities, five recreational vehicle communities, and seven properties
containing both manufactured housing and recreational vehicle sites.

During 2002, the Company acquired four manufactured housing communities,
comprising 1,482 developed sites and 538 sites suitable for development for $69.9 million, and
the Company sold one manufactured housing community for $3.3 million.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
discusses the Company’s consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. The preparation of these financial
statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting periods. In preparing these financial statements, management has made its best
estimates and judgment of certain amounts included in the financial statements. Nevertheless,
actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

Management believes the following significant accounting policies, among others, affect
its more significant judgments and estimates used in the preparation of its consolidated financial
statements:

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets. Rental property is recorded at cost, less accumulated
depreciation. Management evaluates the recoverability of its investment in rental property
whenever events or changes in circumstances, such as recent operating results, expected net
operating cash flow and plans for future operations, indicate that full asset recoverability is
questionable. If such assets were deemed to be impaired as a result of this measurement, the
impairment that would be recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount
of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset as determined on a discounted net cash flow basis.

Notes Receivable. The Company evaluates the recoverability of its notes receivable
(including the notes receivable from Origen) whenever events occur or there are changes in
circumstances such that management believes it is probable that it wili be unable to collect all
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amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. The loan is then measured
based on the present value of the expected future cash flow discounted at the loan’s effective
interest rate or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent.

Depreciation. Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of the assets. The Company uses a thirty year useful life for land improvements and
buildings and a seven to fifteen year useful life for furniture, fixtures and equipment.

Revenue Recognition. Rental income attributable to leases is recorded on a straight-line
basis when earned from tenants. Leases entered into by tenants generally range from month-to-
month to one year and are renewable by mutual agreement of the Company and the resident.

Capitalized Costs. The Company capitalizes certain costs (including interest and other
costs) incurred in connection with the development, redevelopment, capital enhancement and
leasing of its properties. Management is required to use professional judgment in determining
whether such costs meet the criteria for immediate expense or capitalization. The amounts are
dependent on the voiume and timing of such activities and the costs associated with such
activities. Maintenance, repairs and minor improvements to properties are expensed when
incurred. Renovations and improvements to properties are capitalized and depreciated over their
estimated useful lives and construction costs related to the development of new community or
expansion sites are capitalized until the property is substantially complete. Certain expenditures
to dealers and residents related to obtaining lessees in our communities are capitalized and
amortized over a seven year period; shorter than the average resident’s occupancy in the home
and the average term that the home is in our community. Costs associated with implementing the
Company’s new computer systems are capitalized and amortized over the estimated useful lives
of the related software and hardware.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities. During 2002, the Company entered into
three interest rate swap agreements to offset interest rate risk. The Company does not enter into
derivative transactions for speculative purposes. The Company adjusts its balance sheet on an
ongoing quarterly basis to reflect current fair market value of its derivatives. Changes in the fair
value of derivatives are recorded each period in earnings or comprehensive income, as
appropriate. The ineffective portion of the hedge is immediately recognized in earnings to the
extent that the change in value of a derivative does not perfectly offset the change in value of the
instrument being hedged. The unrealized gains and losses held in accumulated other
comprehensive income will be reclassified to earnings over time and occurs when the hedged
items are also recognized in earnings. The Company uses standard market conventions to
determine the fair values of derivative instruments, including the quoted market prices or guotes
from brokers or dealers for the same or similar instruments. All methods of assessing fair value
result in a general approximation of value and such value may never actually be realized.

Deferred Tax Assets. SHS currently has significant deferred tax assets, which are subject
to periodic recoverability assessments. SHS has recognized deferred tax assets of $2.4 million,
net of a valuation reserve of $5.1 million. Realization of these deferred tax assets is principally
dependent upon SHS’s achievement of projected future taxable income. Judgments regarding
future profitability may change due to future market conditions, SHS’s ability to continue to
successfully execute its business plan and other factors.

231-




Income Taxes. The Company has elected to be taxed as a REIT as defined under Section
856(c) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. In order for the Company to qualify
as a REIT, at least ninety-five percent (95%) of the Company’s gross income in any year must be
derived from qualifying sources. As a REIT, the Company generally will not be subject to U.S.

Federal income taxes at the corporate level if it distributes at least ninety percent (90%) of its
REIT ordinary taxable income to its stockholders, which it fully intends to do. If the Company
fails to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year, the Company will be subject to Federal income tax
(including any applicable alternative minimum tax) on its taxable income at regular corporate
rates. The Company remains subject to certain state and local taxes on its income and property
as well as Federal income and excise taxes on its undistributed income.

Results of Operations

Comparison of vear ended December 31, 2002 o vear ended December 31, 2001

For the year ended December 31, 2002, income before equity income (loss) from
affiliates, minority interests, discontinued operations, and gain from property dispositions, net,
decreased by $3.2 million from $42.9 million to $39.7 million, when compared to the year ended
December 31, 2001. The decrease was due to increased expenses of $12.4 million while revenues
increased by $9.2 million.

Income from property increased by $12.9 million from $138.7 million to $151.6 million,
or 9.3 percent, due to rent increases and other community revenues ($5.9 million) and
acquisitions ($7.0 millicn).

Other income decreased by $3.7 million from $14.4 million toc $10.7 million due
primarily to a decrease in interest income ($2.3 million) and reduced development fee income
and other income ($1.4 million).

Property operating and maintenance expenses increased by $4.4 million from $29.0
million to $33.4 million, or 15.2 percent, due to acquired communities ($1.9 million) and
increases in costs including payroll ($1.2 million), workers’ compensation ($0.5 million), and
cable television ($0.3 million), and other expenses (§0.5 million).

Real estate taxes increased by $1.0 million from $9.5 million to $10.5 million, due to the
acquired communities ($0.5 million) and changes in certain assessments.

Property management expenses decreased by $0.2 million from $2.7 million to $2.5
million, representing 1.7 percent and 2.0 percent of income from property in 2002 and 2001,
respectively.

General and administrative expenses increased by $0.6 million from $4.6 million to $5.2

million, representing 3.2 percent and 3.0 percent of total revenues in 2002 and 2001,
respectively.
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Interest expense increased by $1.4 million from $31.0 million to $32.4 million due
primarily to financing additional investments in rental property ($6.0 million) offset by
decreasing rates on variable rate debt ($4.9 million). -

Depreciation and amortization expense increased by $5.2 million from $33.3 million to
$38.5 million due primarily to the net additional investments in rental properties.

Equity income (loss) from affiliates decreased by $16.7 million from income of $0.1
million to a loss of $16.6 million primarily due to equity losses at SHS (§0.7 million), SunChamp
($0.4 million) and Origen ($1.7 million) and the write-off of the Company’s investment in
Origen ($13.6 million) and a technology investment ($0.3 million).

Comparison of year ended December 31, 2001 to vear ended December 31, 2000

For the year ended December 31, 2001, income before equity income (loss) from
affiliates, minority interests, discontinued operations, and gain from property dispositions, net,
increased by $1.9 million from $41.0 million to $42.9 million, when compared to the year ended
December 31, 2000. The increase was due to increased revenues of $7.4 million while expenses
increased by $5.5 million.

Income from property increased by $6.6 million from $132.1 million to $138.7 million, or
5.0 percent, due to rent increases and other community revenues ($6.5 million) and acquisitions
($4.4 million), offset by a revenue reduction of $4.3 million due to property dispositions.

Other income increased by $0.9 million from $13.5 million to $14.4 million due primarily
to an increase in interest income ($1.3 million) offset by reductions in other income ($0.4
million).

Property operating and maintenance expenses increased by $0.6 million from $28.4
million to $29.0 million, or 2.0 percent, representing general cost increases ($1.0 million) and
acquisitions ($0.7 million), offset by an expense reduction of $1.1 million due to property
dispositions.

Real estate taxes increased by $0.4 million from $9.1 million to $9.5 million, or 4.5
percent, due to the acquired communities ($0.2 million) and changes in certain assessments.

Property management expenses decreased by $0.2 million from $2.9 million to $2.7
million, representing 2.0 percent and 2.2 percent of income from property in 2001 and 2000,
respectively.

General and administrative expenses increased by $0.5 million from $4.1 million to $4.6
million, representing 3.0 percent and 2.8 percent of total revenues in 2001 and 2000,
respectively.

Interest expense increased by $1.4 million from $29.6 million to $31.0 million due

primarily to financing additional investments in rental property offset by decreasing rates on
variable rate debt.
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Depreciation and amortization expense increased by $2.8 million from $30.5 million to
$33.3 million due primarily to the net additional investments in rental properties.

Equity in income (loss) of affiliates decreased by $0.5 million due primarily tc a reduced
level of new home sales at Sun Homes Services.

Same Property Information

The following table reflects property-level financial information as of and for the years
ended December 31, 2002 and 2001. The "Same Property” data represents information regarding
the operation of communities owned as of January 1, 2001 and December 31, 2002. Site,
occupancy, and rent data for those communities is presented as of the last day of each period
presented. The “Total Portfclio” column differentiates from the “Same Property” column by
including financial information for properties acquired after Jamuary 1, 2001 and new
development communities.

Same Property Total Portfolie
2002 2001 2002 2001
(in thousands) (in thousands)

Income from property $128,953 §$123.170 $151.642 $139,022

Property operating expenses:

Property operating and maintenance 24,151 23,147 33,403 29,154

Real estate taxes 9,790 9,258 10,545 9.524
Property operating expenses 33,941 32,405 43,948 38,678

Property net operating income $ 95012 § 90765 $107,694 $100,344
Number of properties 103 103 129@ 116
Developed sites 36,748 36,482 43,959% 40,544
Occupied sites 33,217 33,586 38,9409 36,935
Occupancy % 92.2% 94.2%  89.9%?  93.0%
Weighted average monthly rent per site) $ 318 § 303§ 315 § 301
Sites available for development 2,153 2,364 7,642 3,887
Sites planned for development in next year 20 257 175® 613

)

. Occupancy % and weighted average rent relates to manufactured housing sites, excluding recreational vehicle sites.
2

Property site information includes eleven SunChamp communities acquired during the fourth quarter of 2002.

On a same property basis, property revenues increased by $5.8 million from $123.2 million
to $129.0 million, or 4.7 percent, due primarily to increases in rents and related charges including
water and property tax pass through.

Property operating expenses increased by $1.5 million from $32.4 million to $33.9 million,
or 4.7 percent, due to increased costs. Property net operating income increased by $4.2 million
from $90.8 million to $95.0 million, or 4.7 percent.

The occupancy at December 31, 2002, includes 19 new community developments with
3,552 sites which are 64.8 percent occupied. At December 31, 2001, there were five new
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community developments with 564 sites, which were 45.2 percent occupied. Excluding new
community developments, occupancy was 92.4 percent and 93.8 percent at December 31, 2002
and 2001, respectively.

Liguidity and Capital Resources

The Company’s principal liquidity demands have historically been, and are expected to
continue to be, distributions to the Company’s stockholders and the Operating Partnership’s
unitholders, property acquisitions, development and expansion of properties, capital
improvements of properties and debt repayment.

The Company expects to meet its short-term liquidity requirements through its working
capital provided by operating activities and its line of credit, as described below. The Company
considers its ability to generate cash from operations (anticipated to be approximately $70
million) to be adequate to meet ali operating requirements, inciuding recurring capital
improvements, routinely amortizing debt and other normally recurring expenditures of a capital
nature, pay dividends to its stockholders to maintain qualification as a REIT in accordance with
the Internal Revenue Code and make distributions to the Operating Partnership’s unitholders.

The Company plans to invest approximately $5 to $10 million in developments consisting
of expansions to existing communities and the new or continuing development of new
communities. The Company expects to finance these investments by using net cash flows
provided by operating activities and by drawing upon its line of credit.

Furthermore, the Company expects to invest in the range of $40 to $60 million in the
acquisition of properties in 2003, depending upon market conditions. The Company plans to
finance these investments by using net cash flows provided by operating activities and by
drawing upon its line of credit.

Cash and cash equivalents decreased by $1.9 million to $2.7 million at December 31, 2002
compared to $4.6 million at December 31, 2001 because cash used in investing activities
exceeded cash provided by financing and operating activities. Net cash provided by operating
activities decreased by $14.9 million to $51.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2002
compared to $65.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. The decrease resulied
primarily from reduced net income after adding back the reduction in book value of investments
and an increase in other assets.

The Company’s net cash flows provided by operating activities may be adversely impacted
by, among other things: (a) the market and economic conditions in the Company’s current
markets generally, and specifically in metropolitan areas of the Company’s current markets; (b)
lower occupancy and rental rates of the Properties; (c) increased operating costs, including
insurance premiums, real estate taxes and utilities, that cannot be passed on to the Company’s
tenants; and (d) decreased sales of manufactured homes. See “Factors that May Affect Future
Results.”

In 2002, the Company closed on a $152.4 million collateralized five year variable rate
(2.17% at December 31, 2002) debt facility with an option to extend an additional five years at a
p
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variable rate debt facility, which is convertible to a five to ten year fixed rate loan but not to
exceed a total term of fifteen years.

In July 2002, the Company refinanced its existing line of credit to an $85 millicn
unsecured line of credit facility, which matures in July 2005, with a one-year optional extension.
At December 31, 2002, the average interest rate of outstanding borrowings under the line of
credit was 2.27%, $63 million was outstanding and $22 million was available to be drawn under
the facility. Subsequent to year end, the Company increased the line to $105 million. The line of

credit facility contains various leverage, debt service coverage, net worth maintenance and other
customary covenants all of which the Company was in compliance with at December 31, 2002.

In 1998, certain directors, employees and consultants of the Company purchased newly
issued shares of common stock of the Company and common OP Units in the Operating
Partnership for approximately $25.5 million in accordance with the Sun Communities 1998
Stock Purchase Plan (the “Purchase Plan™). The participants in the Purchase Plan financed these
purchases through personal loans (the “Loans”) from Bank One, N.A. (the “Bank™) due in
January 2004. The Company guaranteed the repayment of the Loans. The participants have
agreed to fully indemnify the Company against any and all liabilities arising under such guaranty
(the “Guaranty”) (the principal balance of which was approximately $22.7 millicn at December
31, 2002).

Among other usual commercial provisions, the Guaranty requires that the Company comply
with certain financial covenants. These covenants were initially designed to be identical in ail
material respects with the financial covenants imposed on the Company under its line of credit
facility. Since 1998, as the covenants in the Company’s then applicable line of credit facility
changed, the Guaranty has also been similarly amended to remain consistent. In July 2002, the
Company entered into a replacement line of credit facility; however, conforming amendments to
the Guaranty were not made, resulting in differing and inconsistent financial covenants in the
line of credit facility as compared to the Guaranty. As a consequence, as of September 30, 2002,
the Company was not in compliance with certain of the financial covenants contained in the
Guaranty (the “Differing Financial Covenants™). Because it was nct the intention of the parties
to impose disparate requirements on the Guaranty and the Company’s line of credit, the Bank
waived any breach of the Guaranty arising sclely as a result of the Company’s non-compliance
with the Differing Financial Covenants so long as the Company remains in compliance with all
of the terms and conditions of its line of credit facility. As of December 31, 2002, the Company
was in compliance with the terms and conditions of its line of credit facility and, as a result, the
Company was in compliance with the terms and conditions of the Guaranty.

Section 402 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (the “Sarbanes-Oxley Act”) states that it is
“unlawful for any issuer . .. directly or indirectly, including through any subsidiary, to extend or
maintain credit, to arrange for the extension of credit, or to renew an extension of credit, in the
form of a personal loan to or for any director or executive officer (or equivalent thereof) of that
issuer.” Section 402 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act provides an exception for certain extensions of
credit which are “maintained by the issuer on the date of enactment of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
[July 30, 2002] . . ., provided that there is no material modification to any term of any such
extension of credit or any renewal of any such extension of credit on or after that date of
enactment.” Jaffe, Raitt, Heuer & Weiss, P.C. has delivered a reasoned opinion tc the Company
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to the effect that, based on various assumptions and qualifications set forth in the opinion, a
court could reasonably find that Section 402 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act does not apply to the
waiver letter issued by the Bank and that, even if a court determines that Section 402 applies to
the Bank’s waiver letter, a court could reasonably conclude that the Guaranty fits within the
exception under Section 402 for extensions of credit maintained by the issuer prior to July 30,
2002.  Arthur A. Weiss, a stockholder of Jaffe, Raitt, Heuer & Weiss, P.C., the Company’s
regular outside counsel, is a director of the Company and received a personal loan to purchase
common OP Units under the Purchase Plan.

There is no case law directly on point, and we cannot assure you that a court would not
decide differently from the views expressed in counsel’s opinion and such opinion represents
only the best judgment of counsel and is not binding in the courts. It is unclear what the
consequences to the Company would be if a court determined the Bank’s waiver letter
constituted a material modification of the terms of the Guaranty in violation of Section 402 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

The Company’s primary long-term liquidity needs are principal payments on outstanding
indebtedness. At December 31, 2002, the Company’s outstanding contractual obligations were
as follows:

Payments Due By Period
(in thousands)

Contractual Cash Obligations”  Total Due 1vear 2-3vears 4-Syears AfterS years
Bridge Loan - $ 48,000 $ 48,000
Line of credit 63,000 $ 63,000
Collateratized term loan 42,206 658 $ 1,463 40,085
Collateralized term loan - FNMA 152,363 $ 152,363
Senior notes® 285,000 85,000 65,000 35,000 100,000
Mortgage notes, other 60,366 1,046 24,096 13,814 21,410
Capitalized lease obligations 16,438 6,832 9,606
Redeemable Preferred OP Units 53,978 1,000 2,564 14,632 35,782

$721,351  $142,536 $102,729 $166,531 $309,555

1 As noted above, the Company is the guarantor of $22.7 million in personal bank loans, maturing in 2004,
made to the Company’s directors, employees and consultants for the purpose of purchasing shares of
Company common stock or Operating Partnership OP Units pursuant to the Company’s Stock Purchase
Plan. The Company is obligated under the Guaranty only in the event that one or more of the borrowers
cannot repay their loan when due. This contingent liability is not reflected on the Company’s balance sheet.

2) The provisions of the callable/redeemable $65 million notes are such that the maturity date will likely be
2005 if the 10-year treasury rate is greater than 5.7% on May 16, 2005. The maturity is reflected in the
above table based on that assumption.

-37-




The Company anticipates meeting its long-term liquidity requirements, such as scheduled
debt maturities, large property acquisitions and Operating Partnership unit redemptions, through
the issuance of debt or equity securities, including equity units in the Operating Partnership, or
from selective asset sales. As discussed above, the Company is also obligated to loan Origen up
to $35.5 million under the Origen credit facility, of which $1.9 miilion remained to be drawn as
of December 31, 2002, The Company has maintained investment grade ratings with Moody’s
Investor Service and Standard & Poor’s, which facilitates access to the senior unsecured debt
market. Since 1993, the Company has raised, in the aggregate, nearly $1 billion from the sale of
shares of its common stock, from the sale of OP units in the Operating Partnership, and the
issuance of secured and unsecured debt securities. In addition, at December 31, 2002, 92 of the
Properties were unencumbered by debt, therefore, providing substantial financial flexibility. The
ability of the Company to finance its long-term liquidity requirements in such manner will be
affected by numerous economic factors affecting the manufactured housing community industry
at the time, including the availability and cost of mortgage debt, the financial condition of the
Company, the operating history of the Properties, the state of the debt and equity markets, and the
general national, regional and local economic conditions. See “Factors that May Affect Future
Results”. If the Company is unable to obtain additional equity or debt financing on acceptable
terms, the Company’s business, results of operations and financial condition will be harmed.

The Company’s $48.0 million bridge lcan and $85.0 millicn principal amount of senior
unsecured notes are due April 30 and May 1, 2003, respectively. The Company expects to repay
this indebtedness by issuing additional senior unsecured debt securities. The ability of the
Company to issue such additional debt securities will be affected primarily by the state of the
senior unsecured debt market and general, national and internaticnal economic and pelitical
conditions, such as the uncertainty associated with the current war in Iraq. If the Company is
unable to access the senior unsecured debt market, or is unable to otherwise refinance these
notes, on terms acceptable to the Company prior to May 1, 2003 and the Company is unable to
successfully negotiate extensions with the holders of these debt obligaticns, the Company would
seek secured financing on some of its 92 unencumbered properties.

Included in minority interests are $36 million of Preferred OP Units which would require
collateralization were the Company to no longer be classified as investment grade by the rating
agencies.

At December 31, 2002, the Company’s debt to tctal market capitalization approximated
43.6 percent (assuming conversion of all Common OP Units to shares of common stock). The
debt has a weighted average maturity of approximately 4.6 years and a weighted average interest
rate of 5.3 percent.

Capital expenditures for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 included recurring
capital expenditures of $7.1 million and $4.8 millicn, respectively.

Net cash used in investing activities was $168.9 million for the year ended December 31,
2002 compared to $34.8 million in the prior year. The differences are due to: increased
investment in rental properties of $17.0 million; decreased proceeds from property disposition of
$14 million; and increased investment in notes receivables and investment in and advances to
affiliates of $103.1 million. Additicnally, the Company acquired $10.0 million in rental
properties through the issuance of Preferred OP Units.
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Net cash provided by financing activities was $116.0 million for the year ended December
31, 2002, compared to a use of net cash in the prior year of $44.9 million. The differences are
due to: changes in net proceeds from notes payable, inclusive of line of credit repayments, of
$144.5 million; changes in net proceeds from common stock issuance of $19.2 million; and
increased distributions of $2.8 million.

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

The Company’s ratio of earnings to fixed charges for the years ended December 31, 2002,
2001, and 2000 was 1.68:1, 1.73:1 and 1.74:1 respectively.

Inflation

Most of the leases allow for periodic rent increases which provide the Company with the
opportunity to achieve increases in rental income as each lease expires. Such types of leases
generally minimize the risk of inflation to the Company.

Safe Harbor Statement

This Form 10-K contains various “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the
Securities Act of 1933 and the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and the Company intends that
such forward-looking statements be subject to the safe harbors created thereby. The words
“may”, “will”, “expect”, “believe”, “anticipate”, “should”, “estimate”, and similar expressions
identify forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements reflect the Company’s
current views with respect to future events and financial performance, but are based upon current
assumptions regarding the Company’s operations, future results and prospects, and are subject to
many uncertainties and factors relating to the Company’s operations and business environment
which may cause the actual results of the Company to be materially different from any future
results expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Please see “Factors That May
Affect Future Resuits” for a representative example of such uncertainties and factors. The
Company undertakes no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements
whether as a result of new information, future events, or otherwise.

Recent Accounting Pronouncememnts

In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued FASB
Interpretation No. 46 (“FIN No. 46”), “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.” The
objective of this interpretation is to provide guidance on how to identify a variable interest entity
(“VIE”) and determine when the assets, liabilities, non-controlling interests and results of
operations of a VIE need to be included in a company’s consolidated financial statements. A
company that holds variable interests in an entity will need to consolidate the entity if the
company's interest in the VIE is such that the company will absorb a majority of the VIE"”s
expected losses and/or receive a majority of the VIE’s expected residual returns, if they occur.
FIN No. 46 also requires additional disclosures by primary beneficiaries and other significant
variable interest holders. The provisions of this interpretation became effective upon issuance
with respect to VIEs created after January 31, 2003 and to VIEs in which a company obtains an
interest after that date. The provisions of this interpretation apply in the first interim period
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beginning after June 15, 2003 (i.e., third quarter of 2003) to VIEs in which a company holds a
variable interest that it acquired before February 1, 2003. The Company is in the process of
assessing whether it has an interest in any VIEs which may require consolidation in the third
quarter of 2003 pursuant to FIN No. 46. Entities that may be identified as VIEs include SHS and
Origen.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation-Transition and Disclosure,” which provides guidance on how to transition from

the intrinsic value method of accounting for stock-based emplioyee compensation under APB 25
to SFAS 123’s fair value method of accounting, if a company so elects. The adoption of this
standard did not have a significant impact on the financial position or results of operations of the
Company.

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation (FIN 45) No. 45, “Guarantor’s
Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of
Indebtedness of Others.” FIN 45 clarifies disclosures that are required to be made for certain
guarantees and establishes a requirement to record a liability at fair value for certain guarantees at
the time of the guarantee’s issuance. The disclosure requirements of FIN No. 45 have been
applied in these financial statements. The requirement to record a liability applies to guarantees
issued or modified after December 31, 2002. We do not expect the requirements of FIN 45 to
have a significant impact on the financial position or results of operations of the Company.

In July 2002, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”)
No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities.” The statement
requires companies to recognize costs associated with exit or disposal activities when they are
incurred rather than at the date of a commitment to an exit or disposal plan. Examples of costs
covered by the statement include lease termination costs and certain employee severance costs
that are associated with a restructuring, discontinued operation, plant closing or other exit or
disposal activity. The statement is to be applied prospectively to exit or disposal activities
initiated after December 31, 2002. The adoption of this statement is not expected to have a
significant impact on the financial position or results of operations of the Company.

In May 2002, the FASB issued SFAS 145, “Rescission of SFAS Nos. 4, 44 and 64,
Amendment of SFAS 13, and Technical Corrections as of April 2002.” The provisions of this
statement related to the rescission of Statement 4 shall be applied in fiscal years beginning after
May 15, 2002. The provisions related to Statement 13 shall be effective for transactions
occurring after May 15, 2002, with early application encouraged. All provisions of this
Statement shall be effective for financial statements issued on or after May 15, 2002, with early
application encouraged. Adoption of this statement did not have a significant impact on the
financial position or results of operations of the Company.

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” This Statement supersedes SFAS No. 121, “Accounting for the
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets io Be Disposed Of,” and the
accounting and reporting provisions of APB Opinion No. 30, “Reporting the Results of
Operations -- Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and Extraordinary,
Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions,” for the disposal of a segment of a
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business (as previously defined in that Opinion). The provisions of this SFAS 144 are effective
for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001, and interim
periods within those fiscal years, with early application encouraged. The provisions of "this
standard are generally to be applied prospectively. During the first quarter of 2002, the Company
sold Kings Pointe Mobile Home Park, located in Winter Haven, Florida, for approximately $3.4
million. In accordance with SFAS 144, the Company’s consolidated statements of income and
consolidated statements of cash flow have been revised from those originally reported for the
years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 to separately reflect the results of discontinued
‘operations for one property that was sold in the first quarter of 2002. These results were
previously included in income from operations. These revisions had no impact on the
Company’s consolidated balance sheets or statements of stockholders’ equity and these revisions
had no impact on net income or net income per share of common stock for the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000.

In June 2001, the FASB approved SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations and SFAS No.
142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” SFAS 141 requires, among other things, that the
purchase method of accounting for business combinations be used for all business combinations
initiated after September 30, 2001. SFAS 142 addresses the accounting for goodwill and other
intangible assets subsequent to their acquisition. SFAS 142 requires, among other things, that
goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assets no longer be amortized and that such assets
be tested for impairment at least annually. The adoption of these standards did not have a
significant impact on the financial position or results of operations of the Company.

Other

Funds from operations (“FFO”) is defined by the National Association of Real Estate
Investment Trusts (“NAREIT”) as “net income (computed in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles), excluding gains (or losses) from sales of property, plus rental property
depreciation and amortization, and after adjustments for unconsolidated partnerships and joint
ventures.” Industry analysts consider FFO to be an appropriate supplemental measure of the
operating performance of an equity REIT primarily because the computation of FFO excludes
historical cost depreciation as an expense and thereby facilitates the comparison of REITs which
have different cost bases in their assets. Historical cost accounting for real estate assets
implicitly assumes that the value of real estate assets diminishes predictably over time, whereas
real estate values have instead historically risen or fallen based upon market conditions. FFO
does not represent cash flow from operations as defined by generally accepted accounting
principles and is a supplemental measure of performance that does not replace net income as a
measure of performance or net cash provided by operating activities as a measure of liquidity. In
addition, FFO is not intended as a measure of a REIT’s ability to meet debt principal repayments
and other cash requirements, nor as a measure of working capital. The following table reconciles
net income to FFQO and calculates FFO data for both basic and diluted purposes for the years
ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 (in thousands):
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SUN COMMUNITIES, INC.
RECONCILIATION OF NET INCOME TO FUNDS FROVM OPERATIONS
(Amounts in thousands, except per share/OP unit amounts)

__ 2002 2001 2000
Income before minority interests,
discontinued operations, and gain from ‘
property dispositions, net $ 23,118 § 43,046 $ 41,592
Adjustments:
Depreciation of rental (?roperty 38,262 33,050 30,209
Valuation adjustment ) 449 — —
NOI from discontinued operations 11 121 95
Allocation of SunChamp losses @ 1,315 — —
Reduction in book value of investments 13,881 — —
Income allocated to Preferred OP Units (7.803) (8,131) (7.826)
FFO $ 69.233 5 68,086 $ 64,070
Weighted average common shares and OP Units
outstanding for basic per share/unit data 20,177 19,907 19,999
Dilutive securities: ‘
Stock options and awards 186 182 86
Weighted average common shares and OP Units
outstanding for diluted per share/unit data 20,363 20,089 20,085
FFO per weighted average Common Share/OP Unit
assuming dilution § 340 § 339 § 319

' The Company entered into interest rate swaps for an aggregate of $75 million, thereby substantially
fixing for periods of 5 to 7 years rates which were formerly floating. The valuation adjustment
reflects the thecretical noncash profit and loss were those swaps terminated at the balance sheet date.
As the Company has no expectation of terminating the swaps prior to maturity, the net of these
noncash valuation adjustments will be zero at the various maturities. As any imperfections related to
hedging correlation in these swaps is reflected currently in cash as interest, the valuation adjustments
are excluded from Funds From Operations. The valuation adjustment is included in interest expense.

@ The Company acquired the equity interest of another investor in SunChamp in December 2002,

Consideration consisted cf a long-term note payable at net book value. The note is subordinated to

the return of gross beok value of equity and cumulative preferred returns of 9.25% on the Company’s

investment and the acquired investment. In substance, this note is a cumulative “first-loss” position
relative to the Company’s interest. Accordingly, the losses formerly allocated or allocable to the

Company are reallocated to the note.
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ITEM 7TA. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE ABOUT MARKET
RISK :

The Company’s principal market risk exposure is interest rate risk. The Company mitigates
this risk by maintaining prudent amounts of leverage, minimizing capital costs and interest
expense while continuously evaluating all available debt and equity resources and following
established risk management policies and procedures, which include the periodic use of
derivatives. The Company’s primary strategy in entering into derivative contracts is to minimize
the variability that changes in interest rates could have on its future cash flows. The Company
generally employs derivative instruments that effectively convert a portion of its variable rate
debt to fixed rate debt. The Company does not enter into derivative instruments for speculative
purposes.

The Company’s variable rate debt totals $285.4 million as of December 31, 2002 which
bears interest at various LIBOR or FNMA Discounted Mortgage Backed Securities (“DMBS”)
rates. If LIBOR or DMBS increased or decreased by 1.0 percent during the years ended
December 31, 2002 and 2001, the Company believes its interest expense would have increased or
decreased by approximately $1.7 million and $0.7 million, respectively, based on the $171.3
million and $68.3 million average balance outstanding under the Company’s variable rate debt
facilities for the year ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Additionaily, the Company had $27.3 million and $49.0 million LIBOR based variable rate
mortgage and other notes receivables as of December 31, 2002 and 2001. If LIBOR increased or
decreased by 1.0 percent during the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, the Company
believes interest income would have increased or decreased by approximately $0.37 million and
$0.8 million, respectively, based on the $36.7 million and $79.5 million average balance

outstanding on all variable rate notes receivables for the year ended December 31, 2002 and
2001, respectively.

In September 2002, the Company entered into three separate interest rate swap
agreements, effectively fixing, in the aggregate, $75 million of the Company’s variable rate
borrowings for a period commencing April 2003. One of these swap agreements fixes $25
million of variable rate borrowings at 4.93% for the period April 2003 through July 2009,
another of these swap agreements fixes $25 million of variable rate borrowings at 5.37% for the
period April 2003 through July 2012 and the third swap agreement, which is only effective for so
long as LIBOR is 7% or less, fixes $25 million of variable rate borrowings at 3.97% for the
period April 2003 through July 2007.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Financial statements and supplementary data are filed herewith under Item 15.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS
ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

The Company owns approximately a thirty percent equity interest in Origen Financial,
L.L.C. On December 9, 2002, Origen engaged the certified public accounting firm of Grant
Thornton LLP to serve as its principal independent accounting firm to audit its financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2002. Prior to Origen’s engagement of Grant
Thornton LLP, the Company did not consult with such firm on any accounting, auditing or
financial reporting issue.

PART I

The information required by Items 10, 11, 12 and 13 will be included in the Company’s
proxy statement for its 2003 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, and is incorporated herein by
reference.

ITEM 14. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

(a) The Chief Executive Officer, Gary A. Shiffman, and Chief Financial Officer,
Jeffrey P. Jorissen, evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and
procedures as of a date within 90 days of filing this annual report (the “Evaluation Date”), and
concluded that, as of the Evaluation Date, the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures
were effective to ensure that information the Company is required to disclose in its filings with
the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the
“Exchange Act”) is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods
specified in the Commission’s rules and forms, and to ensure that information required to be
disciosed by the Company in the reports that it files under the Exchange Act is accumulated and
communicated to the Company’s management, including its principal executive officer and
principal financial officer, as appropriate to ailow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

(b There were no significant changes in the Company’s internal controls or in other
factors that could significantly affect these controls subsequent to the Evaluation Date, including
any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.



PART IV

ITEM 15, EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AND REPORTS ON
FORM 8-K

(a) The following documents are filed herewith as part of this Form 10-K:
(1)  Alist of the financial statements required to be filed as a part of this Form
10-K is shown in the “Index to the Consolidated Financial Statements and Financial Statement
Schedule” filed herewith. '
(2) A list of the financial statement schedules required to be filed as a part of
this Form 10-K is shown in the “Index to the Consolidated Financial Statements and Financial

Statement Schedule” filed herewith.

(3) A list of the exhibits required by Item 601 of Regulation S-K to be filed as
a part of this Form 10-K is shown on the “Exhibit Index” filed herewith.

(b)  Reports on Form 8-K:

No Current Reports on Form 8-K were filed during the last fiscal quarter for the
year ended December 31, 2002. '
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~ SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized.

Date: March 31, 2003
SUN COMMUNITIES, INC,, a
Maryland corporation

By:/s/ Gary A. Shiffman
Gary A. Shiffman, President

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Annual Report
on Form 10-K has been signed by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the
capacities and on the dates indicated.

Name : Title Date

[s/ Gary A, Shiffman Chief Executive Officer, President and March 31, 2003
Gary A. Shiffman Chairman of the Board of Directors

/s/ Jeffrey P. Jorissen Senior Vice President, Chief Financial March 31, 2003
Jeffrey P. Jorissen Officer, Treasurer, Secretary and Principal

Accounting Officer
/s/ Paul D. Lapides Director March 31, 2003
Paul D. Lapides
/s/ Ted J. Simon Director March 31, 2003
Ted J. Simon
/s/ Clunet R. Lewis . March 31, 2003
Clunet R. Lewis Drrector
/s/ Ronald L. Piasecki Director March 31, 2003

Ronald L. Piasecki

/s/ Arthur A. Weiss Director March 31, 2003
Arthur A. Weiss
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CERTIFICATIONS

(As Adopted Under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002)

1, Gary A. Shiffman, certify that:

1.

2.

5.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-X of Sun Communities, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact
or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances
under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
annual report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and
cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

The registrant's other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the
registrant and we have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating
to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the period in which this annual report is being
prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures as of a date
within 90 days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date™); and

¢) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to
the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could
adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
data and have identified for the registrant's auditors any material weaknesses in internal
controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant's internal controls; and

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in this annual report whether or not
there were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect
internal controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective
actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Dated: March 31, 2003 /s/ Gary A. Shiffman

Gary A. Shiffman, Chief Executive Officer
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CERTIFICATIONS
(As Adopted Under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002)

I, Jeffrey P. Jorissen, certify that:

1.

2.

5.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Sun Communities, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report deces not contain any untrue statement of a material fact
or omit to state a material fact necessary tc make the statements made, in light of the circumstances
under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
annual report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and
cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

The registrant's other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the
registrant and we have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating
to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by cthers
within those entities, particularly during the pericd in which this annual report is being
prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure contrels and procedures as of a date
within 90 days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date”); and

¢) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluaticn Date;

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to
the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operaticn of internal controls which could
adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
data and have identified for the registrant's auditors any material weaknesses in internal
controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant's internal controls; and

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in this annual report whether or not
there were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect
internal controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective
actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Dated: March 31, 2003

/s/ Jeffrey P. Jorissen
Jeffrey P. Jorissen, Chief Financial Officer
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To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Sun Communities, Inc.:

In our opinion, based upon our audits and the report of other auditors, the consolidated financial
statements listed in the index appearing under Item 15 on page F-1 present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Sun Communities, Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 31,
2002 and 2001, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended December 31, 2002, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, based on our audits and the
report of other auditors, the financial statement schedule listed in the index appearing under Item
15 on page F-1 presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein when
read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements. These financial
statements and the financial statement schedule' are the responsibility of the Company's
management; our responsibility is to express an opinicn on these financial statements and the
financial statement schedule based on our audits. We did not audit the financial statements of
Origen Financial, L.L.C., an investee of the Company, which statements reflect total assets of
$227,748,000 at December 31, 2002 and total revenues of $20,835,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2002. Those statements were audited by other auditors whose report thereon has
been furnished to us, and cur opinion expressed herein, insofar as it relates to the amounts
included for Origen Financial, L.L.C., is based solely on the report of the other auditors. We
conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that cur audits and the report of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements, on January 1, 2002, the
Company adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144,
"Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets".

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Detroit, Michigan
March 12, 2003
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SUN COMMUNITIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2002 and 2001
(zamounts in thousands except for per share data)

ASSETS 2002
Investment in rental property, net $ 999,360
Cash and cash equivalents 2,664
Notes and other receivables 56,329
Investments in and advances to affiliates 67,719
Other assets 37.904
Total assets $1,163.976
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Liabilities:
Line of credit $ 63,000
Debt 604,373
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 16,120

Deposits and other liabilities

8.461

Total liabilities 691.954
Minority interests | 152,490

Stockholders' equity:
Preferred stock, $.01 par value, 10,000 shares
authorized, none issued
Common stock, $.01 par value, 100,000 shares
authorized, 18,281 and 17,763 issued and
outstanding in 2002 and 2001, respectively 183

Paid-in capital 420,683

Officers’ notes (10,703)

Unearned compensation (8,622)

Accumulated other comprehensive loss (1,851)

Distributions in excess of accumulated earnings (73,774)

Treasury stock, at cost, 202 shares (6.384)
Total stockholders' equity 319,532
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

$1.163.976

2001

$ 829,174
4,587
75,532
55,451
29,705

$ 994,449

$ 93,000
402,198
17,683

8

929

521,818

142,998

178
399,789
(11,004)

(6,999)
(45,939)
(6,384)

329.641

4,44

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

F-3




SUN COMMUNITIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000
(amounts in thousands except for per share data)

__ 2002 2001 2000
REVENUES
Income frOmM PIOPETLY ... ........ovuieecrrieresessssrense st $ 151,612 § 138,687 § 132,129
OTher INCOMIE ...........oovviiiieiieieie sttt 10,684 14.401 13,498
TOtAl TEVENUES . ... et 162,296 153.088 145,627
EXPENSES
Property operating and maintenance ................oo.ooererrnecereeesscnmecennes 33,387 28,972 28,408
Real €State tAXeS, ... ..o 10,542 9,492 9,083
Property managemeill ..............coo.oeuriveveneereinsniessinissesesssssesssnesessnns 2,502 2,746 2,934
General and adminiStrative .,.............ccovvvrvvienierieeeeie e 5,220 4,627 4,079
Depreciation and amoTtization, ,................ccccooevevevvoereeeersseeseneee s 38,525 33,320 30,487
INETEST ...ttt ettt 32,375 31016 29,651
TOLAl EXPETISES ,...........oocveirrieeet e, 122,551 110,173 104,642
Income before equity income (loss) from affiliates,
minority interests, discontinued operations, and gain
from property dispositions, NEt,,...............ccccovvreveres oo 39,745 42,915 40,985
Equity income (loss) from affiliates. . ...........ccccccoovciverinceieinicnan, (16.627) 131 607
Income before minority interests, discontinued operations and
gain from property dispositions, Nt .............ccccovrrerrrernirrenrccnnirnnenen, 23,118 43,046 41,592
Less income allocated to minority interests:
Preferred OP Units |.........c.cocoovviveieiiieeee e, 7,803 8,131 7,826
Common OP UNItS , ..........cocoviviieriiieceerieseeeteesiee e 2,003 9.215 5.196
Income from continuing OPErations ................coceeeerveuereervinreeiersensnnan. 13,312 29,700 28,570
Income (loss) from discontinued operations ... 280 (65) 7
Gain from property diSpositions, NEt,, ..........c.ccco.vveverrrreerieerisnens — 4,275 4,801
NELINCOMIE |, ...\..ovoeiceiacee e et es s ennens § 13592 § 33910 § 33294

Basic earnings per share: '
Continuing OPETations ...............coocoveeereeienrconrinnioresessenessnsssasesenns $ 075 § 196 § 1.92
Discontinued operations 0.02 — —

NEtINCOME ... e S 077 8§ __ 19 3 1.9

Diluted earnings per share:
Continuing operations

$ 0.74 $ 1.94 $ 1.91

.......................................................................

Discontinued OPErations...............cc.ccococveueeeerereeeesereseeeeesreseneeens 0.02 — —

NEtINCOME ..ot $ 076 % 194 § 191
Weighted average common shares outstanding:

BaSIC ...ttt 17,595 17.258 17,304

DIIUIEA ..ottt 17,781 17,440 17,390

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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SUN COMMUNITIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000
(amounts in thousands)

2002 2001 - 2000
Net income $ 13,592 $33,910 $ 33,294
Unrealized losses on interest rate swaps (1.851) — —
Comprehensive income $ 11,741 $33910 $ 33,294

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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SUN COMMUNITIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000
{amounts in thousands except for per share data)

Accumulated Distributions
Other in Excess of

Common Paid-in Unearned Comprehensive Accumulated Treasury
Stock Capital Compensation Loss Earnings Stock

Balance, January 1, 2000, ... $174 $393,360 § (5,459) $ — $(38,265) $ —
Issuance of common stock, net_ ... 1 445
Amortization, . ............cooiireverereerenann. 713
Treasury stock purchased, 7 shares . ......... (221)
Reclassification and conversion of

MINOTity INEETESES... ..o, (34)
Netincome ...........cccococvveveirereerireecrinenens 33,294
Cash distributions declared of $2.10

Pershare . ... - (36.717)
Balance, December 31,2000, .................. 175 393,771 (4,746) (41,688) (221
Issuance of common stock, net ... 3 4,077 (3,188)
Amortization,..............cocoevenrerreinnnsiiinnens 935
Treasury stock purchased, 194 shares ....... (6,163)
Reclassification and conversion of

minority interests...............c.ccocooovererenn. 1,941
Netincome ...........ccccovverereieeeeesineiecnenans 33,910
Cash distributions declared of $2.18

pershare., .......iienineenennn, (38.161)
Balance, December 31,2001 ... 178 399,789 (6,999) (45,939) (6,384)
Issuance of common stock, net. ... 5 17,406 (2,767)
AmOTtization.,...............co.oveeeeereerererrerreanns 1,144
Reclassification and conversion of

Minority interests, ..,.,........ocovorveeerecennnn. 3,488
Net inCome ... ...ococvvvricrererieireercreinenns 13,592
Unrealized loss on interest rate swaps , ... (1,851)
Cash distributions declared of $2.29

PET SHATE ..o, (41,427)
Balance, December 31,2002 .. ... $183 $420,683 3§ (8.622) $ (1.851) $(73,774) 3 (6384)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statement
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SUN COMMUNITIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

(amoumnts in thousands)

2002 2001 2000
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
NELINCOMIE .........ocovieeicr ettt sttt nsas e $ 13,592 $ 33,910 $§ 33,294
Adjustments to reconcile net iNCOME t0 ,...........c.ccoovvvervverereverricrinennne,
cash provided by operating activities:
Income allocated to MINCIILY INEETESIS ... ... cooovioieeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e seeesreesaas 2,003 5,215 5,196
Gain from property diSpositions, NEt..................c.cooererrverrerecrerinenereneeanns — (4,275) (4,801)
(Income) loss from discontinued Operations ................c..cceereereerrerernennens (280) 65 77
Operating income included in discontinued operations.................coeeeenn, 11 121 95
Depreciation and amortization ................c.cocceereeeriesieneeere oo senennns 38,525 33,320 30,487
Amortization of deferred financing COStS...........oovvvvevee oo, 1,231 1,065 943
Reduction in book value of investments ..................ccccooviivvreciicecnennen, 13,881 — —
INCrease in Other @SSELS ... .......oc. oot (15,973) (4,879) (7,480)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and other liabilities, ..................... (2,031 1,329 (1.133)
Net cash provided by operating activities ..............cooovoevoveeeieeeeeeeeeerens 50,959 65,871 56,678
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment in rental Properties ,.............ccooeveeirecrerirenensins e seee s (87,283) (70,331) (57,832)
Proceeds related to property diSpositions.................ccccooeeeveeevereeeereesissensennns 3,288 17,331 34,460
Investment in notes receivable, Net,................ocoeoveieerereeeeeee s (33,397) 37,968 (46,577)
Investment in and advances to affiliates.................cocovevreeevereeieee e, (51,782) (20,056) 675
OffICEIS  MOLES | _........eoeeececeee et nsa s 301 253 195
Net cash used in investing activities. . ..............ccccccocvrerervreiseceee e (168.873) _(34.835) (69.079)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net proceeds from issuance of common stock and operating
Partnership UNits, NEL | ..............ccoeiieieieeseeeeeees et s 13,801 809 430
Treasury StOCK PUIChASES . ............co.ooueeeeeeeeeeeeee s es e b sseeeae — (6,163) (221)
Borrowings (repayments) on line of credit, net. ..o, (30,000) 81,000 (35,000)
Proceeds from notes payable and other debt ..................cocoovvieiriiicennn, 200,363 — 100,000
Repayments on notes payable and other debt ... .......ccccooriiiceccrcrienne, (18,488) (76,599) (2,056)
Payments for deferred financing CoStS ............c...cooooevrrrreeirrerincesssseensns (2,914 — (1,242)
DASIIDULIONS ........coiiiceeeci ettt enne (46,771) (43.962) (42,374)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities ..............ccocooivveininnn 115.991 {44.915) 19,537
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents, ..o, (1,923) (13,879) 7,136
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year ..., 4,587 18.466 11,330
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year ..............c..cccooeevoiriimeeircerseeeenn $ 2664 $ 4587 $ 18,466
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
Cash paid for interest including capitalized amounts of $2,915
$3,704 and $3,148 in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively .............ccocoovonn. $ 34,830 $ 34,048 $ 31,882
Noncash investing and financing activities: ' -
Debt assumed for rental Properties. ..............oocoveveereereseereeeeseeeenens 20,653 26,289 —
Issuance of partnership units for rental properties ................cccocvvoivvieinn, 4,500 4,612 3,564
Issuance of partnership units to retire capitalized lease obligations ........ 5,520 — —
SunChamp assets acqUIred ... ......o.ccooiviiciee e s 92,410 — —
SunChamp liabilities assumed...................cccoocvveueecreree e ees e, 86,210 — —
Notes issued for SunChamp equity ............cccccoooerrrrrcrsrenrerieceseesereane, 6,200 — —
Restricted common stock issued as unearned compensation, net ,........... 2,767 3,188 —
Notes receivable reclassified to advances to affiliate ..., —_ 11,210 —
Property acquired (sold) in satisfaction of note receivable,.,................ — 1,338 (8,614)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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SUN COMMUNITIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

2. Business: Sun Communities, Inc. (the "Company”) is a real estate investment trust ("REIT™)
which owns and operates 129 manufactured housing communities at December 31, 2002 located
in 17 states concentrated principally in the Midwest and Southeast comprising approximately
43,959 developed sites and approximately 7,642 sites suitable for development.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
periods. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

b. Primeiples of Consolidation: The accompanying financial statements include the accounts of the
Company and all majority-owned and controlled subsidiaries including Sun Communities
Operating Limited Partnership (the “Operating Partnership”) and, effective December 31, 2002,
SunChamp LLC (“SunChamp”). The minority interests include Common Operating Partnership
Units ("OP Units") which are convertible intc an equivalent number of shares of the Company's
common stock. Such conversion would have no effect on eamings per share since the allocation
of earnings to an OP Unit is equivalent to eamings allocated to a share of commeon stock. Of the
20.7 million OP Units outstanding at December 31, 2002, the Company owns 18.1 million or 87.6
percent. The minority interests are adjusted to their relative ownership interest whenever OP Units
or common stock are issued, converted or retired by reclassification to/from paid-in capital.

Included in minority interests at December 31, 2002 and 2001 are 2 million Series A Perpetual
Preferred OP Units (“PPOP Units™) issued at $25 per unit in September 1999 bearing an annual
coupon rate of 8.875 percent. The PPOP Units may be called by the Company at par on or after
September 29, 2004, have no stated maturity or mandatory redemption and are convertible into
preferred stock under certain circumstances.

An additional $44 million of Preferred OP Units (“POP Units™) are included in minority interests
at December 31, 2002 with dividends at rates ranging from 6.85 percent to 9.19 percent and
maturing between 2003 and 2014. Of these POP Units, $35.8 million have a conversion price of at
least $68 per unit. | '

During 2002, $10.0 million of POP Units were issued relating to two property acquisitions and are
included in minority interests. $4.5 million of the POP Units, issued in relation to a January
acquisition, pay dividends at 6.0% and mature on January 2, 2007. The remaining $5.5 million of
POP Units pay dividends at 7.625%, mature on December 1, 2007 and relate to a December
property acquisition.
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SUN COMMUNITIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACC@UNTHNG POLICIES (Continued):

C.

Rental Property: Rental property is recorded at cost, less accumulated depreciation.
Management evaluates the recoverability of its investment in rental property whenever events
or changes in circumstances such as recent operating results, expected net operating cash flow
and plans for future operations indicate that full asset recoverability is questionable.

The Company measures the recoverability of its assets in accordance with the Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 144 (“SFAS 144”), “Accounting for the Impairment or
Disposal of Long Lived Assets.” If such assets were deemed to be impaired as a result of this
measurement, the impairment that would be recognized is measured by the amount by which
the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset as determined on a
discounted net cash flow basis. No such impairment existed as of December 31, 2002.

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets.

Useful lives are 30 years for land improvements and buildings and 7 to 15 years for furniture,
fixtures and equipment.

Expenditures for ordinary maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred and
significant renovations and improvements, which improve and/or extend the useful life of the
asset, are capitalized and depreciated over their estimated useful lives. Construction costs
related to development of new communities or expansion sites, including interest, are
capitalized until the property is substantially complete. The Company capitalizes certain costs
(including interest and other costs) incurred in connection with the development,
redevelopment, capital enhancement and leasing of its properties. Management is required to
use professional judgment in determining whether such costs meet the criteria for immediate
expense or capitalization. The amounts are dependent on the volume and timing of such
activities and the costs associated with such activities.

Cash and Cash Equivalents: The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an
initial maturity of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents.

Notes and Accounts Receivable: The Company evaluates the recoverability of its receivables
whenever events occur or there are changes in circumstances such that management believes it
is probable that it will be unable to collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms
of the ioan and lease agreements. The collectibility of loans is measured based on the present
value of the expected future cash flow discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate or the fair
value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent. At December 31, 2002 the reserve for
uncollectable accounts receivable from residents was $0.15 million.



SUN COMMUNITIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Centinued):

f. Investments in and Advances to Affiliates: Sun Home Services (“SHS”) sells and rents new
and used homes in our communities, manages a golf course, and provides activities and other
services and facilities for our residents. Through the Operating Partnership, the Company owns
one hundred percent (100%) of the outstanding preferred stock of SHS, is entitled to ninety-
five percent (95%) of the operating cash flow, and accounts for its investment utilizing the
equity method of accounting, The common stock is owned by one officer of the Company and
the estate of a former officer of the Company who collectively are entitled to receive five
percent (5%) of the operating cash flow.

Bingham Financial Services Corporation (“BFSC”) was formed by Sun in 1997 in response to
demand for financing from purchasers and residents in the Company’s communities. As
BFSC’s business developed, its objectives and opportunities expanded and the Company
concluded that its business could be operated and grown more effectively as a separate public
entity. BFSC’s initial public offering occurred in November 1997. The Company has continued
to provide financial support to BFSC. In December 2001, the Company, through SHS, made a
$15 million equity investment in a newly formed company Origen Financial, L.L.C., that was
merged with Origen Financial, Inc., subsidiary of BFSC, as part of the recapitalization of
BFSC. As aresult of this equity investment, the Company owns approximately a thirty percent
(30%) interest'in the surviving company (“Origen”), which company holds all of the operating
assets of BFSC and its subsidiaries. The Company wrote-off its remaining investment in
Origen of $13.6 million in the fourth quarter of 2002 after an extensive analysis of the
investment.

Through Sun Home Services, the Company and two other participants (one unaffiliated and
one affiliated with Gary A. Shiffman, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and President)
continue to provide financing to Origen and are subject to the risks of being a lender. These
risks include the risks relating to borrower delinquency and default and the adequacy of the
coilateral for such lcans. This financing consists of a $48 million line of credit and a $10
million term lcan of which the Company’s commitment is $35.5 miilion ($33.6 million was
outstanding as of December 31, 2002). The line bears interest at a per annum rate equal to 700
basis points over LIBOR, with a minimum interest rate of 11 percent and a maximum interest
rate of 15 percent. Of the Company’s $35.5 million participation, $18 million is subordinate in
all respects to the first $40.0 million funded under the facility by the three participants. This
line of credit is collateralized by a security interest in Origen’s assets, which is subordinate in
all respects to all institutional indebtedness of Origen, and a guaranty and pledge of assets by
BFSC.
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SUN COMMUNITIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2002, 2001 ANID 2000

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued):

f. Imvestments in and Advances to Affiliates (Continued):

Summarized combined financial information of the Company’s equity investments as of
December 31, 2002, SHS and Origen, are presented below before elimination of intercompany
transactions. SunChamp, which is consolidated in the Company’s financial statements as of
December 31, 2002, is not included in the table.

2002 2001
Loansreceivable,net. ..o, $173,764 $127,412
Due from Origen .............ccccoveeueen. 33,560 —
SHS other assets .............cococoveerrunee. 41,638 36,281
Origen other assets . . ..........c.co...... 53.984 49,813
Total assets,...........cccccevvrunnee. $302,946 $213,506

Advances under

repurchase agreements $141,085 $105,564

...................

Dueto SHS ..o, 33,560 —
Due to Sun Communities . _.............. 67,719 39,660
SHS other liabilities................coco........ 25,804 8,748
Origen other liabilities .,..................... 42,799 20,634
Total liabilities . .................... 310,967 174,606
Equity (deficit)............ccocovvvvrernnee. (8.021) 38,900
Total liabilities and equity . ...... $302,946 $213,506
REVENUES .. .....cccoovevieirirrirean, $ 27,572 $ 29,2740
EXPEIISES ._....oooooooveeeseeeeeeseeeesssenee 74,143 29.675%
NELIOSS ... $(46,571) §__(401)
Sun’s equity income (loss) ................. $(15925) § 131

O Includes Origen’s financial data for the period from December 19, 2001 to December 31, 2001.

SHS currently has significant deferred tax assets, which are subject to periodic recoverability
assessments. Realization of these deferred tax assets is principally dependent upon SHS’s
achievement of projected future taxable income. Judgments regarding future profitability may
change due to future market conditions, SHS’s ability to continue to successfully execute its
business plan and other factors. These changes, if any, may require possible material
adjustments to these deferred tax asset balances. At December 31, 2002, Sun Home Services
has deferred tax assets of $2.4 million, net of a valuation allowance of $5.1 million.

. Revenue Recognition: Rental income attributable to leases is recorded on a straight-line basis
when eamed from tenants. Leases entered into by tenants generally range from month-to-
month to one year and are renewable by mutual agreement of the Company and resident or, in
some cases, as provided by state statute.
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SUN COMMUNITIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued):

h. Other Capitalized Costs: Certain expenditures to dealers and residents related to obtaining
lessees in our communities are capitalized and amortized over a seven year period; shorter than
average resident’s occupancy and the average term that the home is in the community. Costs
associated with implementing the Company’s new computer systems are capitalized and
amortized over the estimated useful lives of the related software and hardware.

i. Fair Value of Finamcial Imstruments: The cairying values of cash and cash equivalents,
escrows, receivables, accounts payable, accrued expenses and other assets and liabilities are
reasonable estimates of their fair values because of the shorter maturities of these instruments.
The fair value of the Company’s long-term indebtedness, which is based on the estimates of
management and on rates currently quoted and rates currently prevailing for comparable loans
and instruments  of comparable maturities, exceeds the aggregate carrying value by
approximately $86.1 million at December 31, 2002.

jo Derivative Imstruments amd Hedging Activities: The Company has entered into three
derivative contracts. The Company’s primary strategy in entering into derivative contracts is to
minimize the variability that changes in interest rates could have on its future cash flows. The
Company generally employs derivative instruments that effectively convert a portion of its
variable rate debt to fixed rate debt. The Company does not enter into derivative instruments
for speculative purposes.

The Company has entered into three interest rate swap agreements for an aggregate notional
amount of §75 million. The agreements are effective April 2003, and have the effect of fixing
interest rates relative to a collateralized term loan due to FNMA. One swap matures in July
2009, with an effective fixed rate of 4.93%. A second swap matures in July 2012, with an
effective fixed rate of 5.37%. The third swap matures in July 2007, with an effective fixed rate
0f3.97%. The third swap is effective as long as LIBOR is 7% or lower.

The Company has designated the first two swaps as cash flow hedges for accounting purposes.
These two hedges were highly effective and had minimal effect on income. The third swap
does not qualify as a hedge for accounting purposes and, accordingly, the entire change in
valuation of $0.45 miliion is reflected as a component of interest expense in the statements of
income.

In accordance with SFAS No. 133, the “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities,” which requires all derivative instruments to be carried at fair value on the balance
sheet, the Company has recorded all three interest rate swaps totaling a liability of $2.3 miilion
as of December 31, 2002.

These valuation adjustments will only be realized if the Company terminates the swaps prior to
maturity. This is not the intent of the Company and, therefore, the net of vaiuation adjustments
through the various maturity dates will approximate zero.
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SUN COMMUNITIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued):

k. Stock Options: The Company accounts for its stock options using the intrinsic value method

contained in APB Opinion No. 25. “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.” If the
Company had accounted for awards using the methods contained in FASB Statement No. 123,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”, net income and earnings per share would have
been presented as follows for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000:

2002 2001 2000
Net income, aS TEPOTTE .............ooooeeeeeeeeeeeere e eeeceerin $ 13,592 $ 33910 § 33,294
Additional compensation expense under fair value method (478) (321) (199
Pro forma net iNCOIME..............o.oo.oveiveeeeeereeeeres s s e $ 13114 3§ 33,589 33,095
EPS (Basic), as T€POTtEA.............oovoroeeeeeeeeeeeee oo sev s eerararans $ 077 $ 1.96 $ 1.92
EPS (Basis), Do fOTMA. . .........ccooovoeeeeeeseeeeeeeeeesee e esenesns $§ 075 $ 1.95 $ 191
EPS (Diluted), as 1ePOrted ............cooooerereeeeeeee oo $ 076 $ 194 $ 191
EPS (Diluted), pro forma . ..............cccoooioieeeeee e $ 074 $ 193 $ 190

Reclassifications: Certain 2001 and 2000 amounts have been reclassified to conform with the
2002 financial statement presentation. Such reclassifications had no effect on results of
operations as originally presented.

2. RENTAL PROPERTY (amounts in thousands):

At December 31

2002 2001
LANA .ottt et r s et et et en e ae et s ererernans $ 101,926 $ 83,954
Land improvements and buildings....................cccoooovvioeeoees oo, 999,540 831,963
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment ......................ocoovooeieeeee oo 26,277 21,432
Land held for future development......................cocoooieeecees e, 34,573 16,810
Property under development | ..o, 12,521 15,777

1,174,837 969,936

Less accumulated depreciation (175.477) (140,762)

$ 999,360 $829,174

..............................................................

Land improvements and buildings consist primarily of infrastructure, roads, landscaping,
clubhouses, maintenance buildings and amenities. Included in rental property at December 31,
2002 and 2001 are net carrying amounts related to capitalized leases of $17.9 million and $28.6
million, respectively.

During 2002, the Company acquired one stabilized community, comprising 552 developed sites,
for $21.3 million and three development communities, comprising 930 developed sites and 538
sites available for development, for $48.6 million consisting of cash of approximately $23.1
million, POP Units of approximately $4.5 million and assumption of debt of approximately $21.0
million. During 2001, the Company acquired five communities comprising 2,332 developed sites
for $55.8 million and two development communities comprising 1,273 sites, for $4.3 million.
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SUN COMMUNITIES, INC,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

2. RENTAL PROPERTY (amounts in thousands) (Continued):

In December 2002, the Company purchased the ownership interest of Champion Enterprises in
SunChamp LLC, a joint venture to develop eleven new communities in Texas, North Carolina,
Chio and Indiana, for approximately $6.2 million, payable pursuant tc a 7 year promissory note (a)
bearing interest at 3.46% per annum, (b) requiring no principal or interest payments until maturity
(other than a one-time prepayment of interest in the amount of approximately $270,000 at closing),
and (c) providing that all payments obligations are subordinate in all respects to the return of the
members’ equity (including the gross book value of the acquired equity) plus a preferred return. As
a result of this acquisition, the Company owns approximately 59 percent of SunChamp. SunChamp
is consolidated on the Company’s balance sheet as of December 31, 2002; previously SunChamp
was accounted for using the equity method. In addition, in September 2002, the Company acquired
the senior lender’s entire right, title and interest in and tc SunChamp’s construction loan for a
purchase price equal to 89 percent of the outstanding indebtedness thereof, which constitutes a
discount of approximately $5.8 million.

These transactions have been accounted for as purchases, and the statements of income include the
operations of the acquired communities from the dates of their respective acquisitions. As of
December 31, 2002, in conjunction with a 1993 acquisition, the Company is obligated to issue $7.4
million of OP Units through 2009 based on the per share market value of the Company’s stock on
the issuance date. This obligation was accounted for as part of the purchase price of the original
acquisition. ’

In February 2002, the Company soid a manufactured home community in Florida consisting of 227
sites of which 131 were occupied, for cash of approximately $3.3 million, resulting in a gain of
$0.4 million on the sale. The gain has been included in discontinued operations and all periods
presented have been revised to reflect discontinued operations. The adoption of this requirement
did not have an impact on net income available to common shareholders.

3. NOTES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (amounts in thousands):

At December 31,
2002 2001
Mortgage and other notes receivable, primarily with minimum
monthly interest payments at LIBOR based floating rates
of approximately LIBOR + 2.0%, maturing at various
dates from July 2003 through August 2008, substantially
collateralized by manufactured home communities $ 38,420 $ 48,310
Installment loans collateralized by manufactured homes with
interest payable monthly at an effective weighted average
interest rate and maturity of 8.2% and 20 years, respectively 11,633 13,475
Other receivables 6,276 13,747

§ 56329 § 75532
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SUN COMMUNITIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

3. NOTES AND OTHER RECEIVABILES (amounts in thousands) (Continued):

At December 31, 2002, the maturities of mortgage notes and other receivables are approximately as
follows: 2003 - $1.5 million; 2004 - $18.4 million; 2006 and after - $18.5 million.

Officers' notes, presented as a reduction to stockholders’ equity in the balance sheet, are 13 to 15 year,
LIBOR + 1.75% notes, with a minimum and maximum interest rate of 6% and 9%, respectively,
collateralized by 362,206 shares of the Company’s common stock and 127,794 OP Units with
substantial personal recourse. Interest income of $0.7 million, $0.9 million and $0.9 million has been
recognized in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Reductions in the principal balance of Cfficer’s notes
were $0.3 million, $0.3 million and $0.2 million for the years 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

4. DEBT AND LINE QF CREDIT(amounts in thousands):
The following table sets forth certain information regarding debt (in thousands):

At December 31,
2002 2001
Bridge loan, at variable interest rate (2.617% at
December 31, 2002), due April 30, 2003 $ 48,000 § —
Senior notes, interest at 7.625%, due May 1, 2003 85,000 85,000
Callable/redeemable notes, interest at 6.77%, due
May 14, 2015, callable/redeemable May 16, 2005 65,000 65,000
Senior notes, interest at 6.97%, due December 3, 2007 35,000 35,000
Senior notes, interest at 8.20%, due August 15, 2008 100,000 100,000
Collateralized term loan, due to FNMA, at variable
interest rate (2.17% at December 31, 2002).due
- May 2007, convertible to a 5 to 10 year fixed rate loan - 152,363 ' —
Collateralized term loan, interest at 7.01%,
due September 9, 2007 42,206 42,820
Capitalized lease obligations, interest at 6.1%, due
-through January 2004 16,438 26,045
Mortgage notes, other 60,366 48,333

$ 604373 § 402,198

The collateralized term loans totaling $194,569 are secured by 22 properties comprising approximately
11,000 sites. The capitalized lease obligations and mortgage notes are collateralized by 15
communities comprising approximately 4,300 sites. At the lease expiration date of the capitalized
leases the Company has the right and intends to purchase the properties for the amount of the then
outstanding lease obligation. One of the capitalized lease obligations matured on January 1, 2003 and
was paid by the issuance of 41,700 Preferred OP Units, cash of approximately $860,000 and the
assumption of approximately $1,570,000 of debt, which was immediately retired.
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SUN COMMUNITIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

4, DEBT AND LINE OF CREDIT (amoumnts in thousands)(Continued):

The initial term of the variable rate FNMA debt is five years. The Company has the option to extend
such variable rate borrowings for an additional five years and/or convert them to fixed rate borrowings
with a term of five or ten years, provided that in no event can the term of the borrowings exceed fifieen
years.

There are various covenants included in the senior notes and line of credit including limitations on the
amount of debt which may be incurred, the amount of secured debt, and various financial ratios. At
December 31, 2002, the Company can incur approximately $25.0 million of additional aggregate debt
and of the Company’s total debt, $460.0 million of it may be secured debt.

At December 31, 2002, the maturities of debt, excluding the line of credit, during the next five yeais
are approximately as follows: 2003 — $141.5 million; 2004 - $33.7 million; 2005 — $66.4 million: 2006
- $12.3 million; 2007 - $76.6 million.

In July 2002, the Company refinanced its line of credit at $85 million. The Company had $22 million
of this facility available to borrow at December 31, 2002. Subsequent to year-end, the Company
increased this line of credit to $105 million. Borrowings under the line of credit bear interest at the rate
of LIBOR plus 0.85% and mature July 2, 2005 with a one-year extension at the Company’s option.
The average interest rate of cutstanding borrowings under the line of credit at December 31, 2002 was
2.27%.

The Company has a bridge loan of $48 million and senior notes of $85 million due on April 30 and
May 1, 2003, respectively. It is the Company’s expectation that these obligations will be retired
utilizing the proceeds from the issuance of additional debt.

The Company is the guarantor of $22.7 million in personal bank loans maturing in 2004, made to
directors, employees and consultants to purchase Company common stock and OP units pursuant to
the Company’s Stock Purchase Plan. No compensation expense was recognized in respect to the
guarantees as the fair value thereof was not material nor have there been any defaults. -

5. STOCK OPTIONS:

Data pertaining to stock option plaﬁs are as follows:

- ,. 2002 _ 2001 2006
Options outstanding, January 1. ..., 1,090,794 1,109,250 1,121,000
Cptions granted...............ccccovoiiireeseerreeererersereens 7,500 137,960 17,500
OPtioN PIICE. vt e $3492  $27.03-%$32.81 $35.37

" Options EXEICISEA. ... .....oovveeeeeeeeeosbeeeeeeress e, 97,665 59,773 16,667
OPtON PIICE ..o oo eee e ee s, $20.13-$35.39  $22.75-$33.75  $28.64-$30.03
Options forfeited ................cocoooviveee e eceeeeeee, 24,862 96,583 12,583
OPLON PICE ... eeeeseeee e s s e $27.03-$32.75  $27.03-$33.82  $30.03-$33.75
Options outstanding, December 31 ... - 975,767® 1,050,794 1,109,250
OPLION PTICE ... e e, $20-$35.39 $20-$35.39 $20-$35.39
Options exercisable, December 31 834,249® 823,227 827,329




SUN COMMUNITIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

5. STOCK CPTIONS (amoumnts in thousands){Continued):

@ There are 324,854 and 284,359 options outstanding and exercisable, respectively, with exercise prices ranging from

$20.00 - $27.99 with a weighted average life of 3.7 years related to the outstanding options. The weighted average
exercise price for these outstanding and exercisable options is $24.02 and $23.59, respectively. There are 650,913 and
549,890 options outstanding and exercisable, respectively, with exercise prices ranging from $28.00 - $35.39 with a
weighted average life of 5.4 years related to the outstanding options. The weighted average exercise price for these
outstanding and exercisable options is $30.73 and $30.34, respectively.

At December 31, 2002, 150,519 ;shares of common stock were available for the granting of options.
Stock option plans originally provided for the grant of up to 2,117,000 options. Options are granted at
fair value of the common stock and generally vest over a two-year period and may be exercised for 10
years after date of grant. In addition, the Company established a Long-Term Incentive Plan in 1997 for
certain employees granting 167,918 options (of which 117,379 remain outstanding), which become
exercisable in equal installments in 2002-2004.

The Company has opted to measure compensation cost utilizing the intrinsic value method. The fair
value of each option grant was estimated as of the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing
model with the following assumptions for options granted:

. 2002 _2001 2000
Estimated fair value per share of options granted during year ., ,...... $ 4.420 $6.19 $ 243
Assumptions: »
Annualized dividend Yield................ccooovoocrorresioeeeesess e 5.9%0  5.9% 7.1%
Common stock price VOIAHEEY ...........ooooooooooooeorereeeeereere e, 164%"  164%  15.3%
Risk-free rate Of Tt ..__............o.ccoccoooeeeoeee oo seesseee s 53%0  53% 6.4%
Expected option term (in YEars)..............ccccovvereereereeerseessesseenns 7 -4 6

® 2002 based on valuation as of April 2001, due to insignificant option issuance in 2002.

. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY:

In April 1998, the Company declared a dividend of one Preferred Stock Purchase Right (“Right”) for
each outstanding share of common stock. The Rights are not presently exercisable. Each Right
entitles the holder, upon the occurrence of certain specified events, including a material change in the
ownership of the Company, to purchase preferred stock and common stock, from the Company and/or
from another person into which the Company is merged or which acquires control of the Company.

The Rights may be generally redeemed by the Company at a price of $0.01 per Right or $0.2 million
in total. The Rights expire on June 8, 2008.

In July 2002, and in March 2001, the Company issued restricted stock awards of 70,000 at $39.53 per
share, and 99,422 at $33.00 per share, respectively, to officers and certain employees which are being
amortized over their five to ten year vesting period. Compensation cost recognized in income for all

restricted stock awards was $1.1 million, $0.9 million and $0.7 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. .
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

7. OTHER INCOME (amoumnts in thousands):

The components of other income are as follows for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and
2000:

2002 2001 2000

Interest income $ 8,380 $10,706 $ 9,385
QOther income 2,304 3.695 4,113

$10,684 $14.40]1 $13.498

8. INCOME TAXES (amoumnts in thousands):

The Company has elected to be taxed as a real estate investment trust (“REIT”) as defined under
Section 856(c) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. In order for the Company to qualify
as a REIT, at least ninety-five percent (95%) of the Company’s gross income in any year must be
derived from qualifving sources. In addition, a REIT must distribute at least ninety percent (90%) of its
REIT ordinary taxable income to its stockholders.

Qualification as a REIT involves the satisfaction of numercus requirements (some on an annual and
quarterly basis) established under highly technical and complex Cede provisions for which there are
only limited judicial or administrative interpretations, and invelves the determination of various factual
matters and circumstances not entirely within the Company’s control. In addition, frequent changes
occur in the area of REIT taxation, which require the Company continually to monitor its tax status. In
one recent change, Congress modified the asset test applicable to REITs and the Code now provides
that for taxable years beginning after December 31, 2000, REITs may own more than ten percent of the
voting power and value of securities of a taxable REIT subsidiary (“TRS”). A corporation is treated as
a TRS if a REIT owns stock in the corporation and the REIT and the corporation jointly elect such
treatment. Effective July 1, 2001, the Company filed a TRS election for SHS. During the period from
January 1, 2001 through June 30, 2001, the Company believes that SHS met certain grandfather rules
permitting REITs indirectly to own more than ten percent of the value of a corporation, without
violating any REIT asset tests. Nevertheless, there is no assurance that the Internal Revenue Service
would not determine that SHS failed to meet one or more of the highly technical grandfather rules
during this period.

The Company has received a legal opinion to the effect that, based on various assumptions and
qualifications set forth in the opinion, Sun Communities, Inc. has been organized and has operated in
conformity with the requirements for qualification as a REIT under the Code for its taxable years ended
December 31, 1994 through December 31, 2002. There is no assurance that the Internal Revenue
Service would not decide differently from the views expressed in counsel’s opinion and such opinion
represents only the best judgment of counsel and is not binding on the Internal Revenue Service or the
courts.

As a REIT, the Company generally will not be subject to U.S. Federal income taxes at the corporate
level on the ordinary taxable income it distributes to its stockholders as dividends. If the Company fails
to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year, its taxable income will be subject to U.S. Federal income tax at
regular corporate rates (including any applicable alternative minimum tax). Even if the Company
qualifies as a REIT, it may be subject to certain state and local income taxes and to U.S. Federal income
and excise taxes on its undistributed income.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2600

8. INCOME TAXES (amounts in thousands) (Continued):

Dividend payout on taxable income available to common stockholders for the years ended December
31, 2002, 2001 and 2000:

2002 2001 2000
Taxable income available to
common stockholders $ 6,046 $ 13,149 $14,683
Less tax gain on disposition of properties — (175 (13)
Taxable operating income available to
common stockholders $ 6,046 § 12574 $14.670
Total distributions paid to common stockholders $41427 $ 38,161 $36.717

For income tax purposes, distributions paid to common stockholders consist of ordinary income, capital
gains, and return of capital. For the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, distributions paid
per share were taxable as follows:

2002 2001 2000
Amoumnt Percemtage Amount Percentage Amount Percentage

Ordinary income $ 154 67.1% $ 138 63.1% $ 130 62.0%
Return of capital 75 32.9 .80 36.9 0.80 38.0
§ 229 100.0% $§ 218 100.0% § 210 100.0%

9. EARNINGS PER SHARE (amounts in thousands):

2002 2001 _ 2000

Earnings used for basic and diluted eamings per

share computation $13,592 $ 33910 $33.294
Total shares used for basic earnings per share 17,595 17,258 17,304
Dilutive securities:

Stock options and other 186 182 86
Total weighted average shares used for diluted

earnings per share computation 17,781 17,440 17,390

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that would occur if dilutive securities were
exercised or converted into common stock. Included in basic and diluted earnings per share from
continuing operations, in the Consolidated Statements of Income, is $0.25 and $0.28 related to gains
from property dispositions in 2001 and 2000, respectively.
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10. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED):

The following unaudited quarterly amounts are in thousands, except for per share amounts:

First Second Third  Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
March 31 Jume 30 Sept. 30 Dec. 31
2002
TOtaAl TEVEIUES ..........o.viieeeeeeeeeee et § 40,905 $§ 40,021 $ 40,843 § 40,527
Total XPENSES ... .....ccoveiverieeririeicreeeeesns et $ 29,754 $ 29,079 $ 30,787  § 32,931
Net income (1055)™ ..., reeesecerscmemneneene $ 8114 $ 7,002 8 5802 $ (7326

Weighted average common shares cutstanding 17,322 17,544 17,739 17,777

Earnings (loss) per common share-basic $ 047 $ 040 $§ 033 $ (04D

......................

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
March 31 June 30 Sept. 30 Dec. 31
2001 ‘
Total TEVENUES ... .......ovevveeirceerceeeeeeeres e $ 38,844  § 38,090 $ 37,792 $ 38,362

$ 39,091 $ 38,148 $ 38309 § 38,006
$ 27,721 $ 27,164 $ 27,059 $ 28,229
Total expenses as previously reported ... . $ 27,827 $ 27,263 $ 27,160 $ 28,333
Netincome ® ..o $ 11,104 S 8320 $§ 7,877 § 6,609
Weighted average common shares outstanding 17,365 17,203 17,210 17,256
$  0.64 $ 048 $ 046 $ 0.8

Eamnings per common share-basic

.......................

Total expenses

------------------------------------------------------------

............

................................

@ Net income includes net gains on the disposition of properties of $3,517 in the first quarter of 2001 and $758 in the
second quarter of 2001.

® Included in net income for the fourth quarter of 2002 is the write-off of $13.6 million pertaining to the Company’s
investment in Crigen.

© Revenues and expenses have been restated to conform with SFAS 144 which requires operations of properties sold or
held for sale to be reclassified as discontinued operations.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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11. RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS:

In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued FASB Interpretation
No. 46 (“FIN No. 46”), “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.” The objective of this
interpretation is to provide guidance on how to identify a variable interest entity (“VIE”) and
determine when the assets, liabilities, non-controlling interests and results of operations of a VIE
need to be included in a company’s consolidated financial statements. A company that holds
variable interests in an entity will need to consolidate the entity if the company's interest in the
VIE is such that the company will absorb a majority of the VIE"s expected losses and/or receive a
majority of the VIE’s expected residual returns, if they occur. FIN No. 46 also requires additional
disclosures by primary beneficiaries and other significant variable interest holders. The
provisions of this interpretation became effective upon issuance with respect to VIEs created after
January 31, 2003 and to VIEs in which a company obtains an interest after that date. The
provisions of this interpretation apply in the first interim period beginning after June 15, 2003
(i.e., third quarter of 2003) to VIEs in which a company holds a variable interest that it acquired
before February 1, 2003. The Company is in the process of assessing whether it has an interest in
any VIEs which may require consolidation in the third quarter of 2003 pursuant to FIN No. 46.
Summarized financial information for entities which may be identified as VIEs is included in
Note 1f of notes to the financial statements.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation-
Transition and Disclosure,” which provides guidance on how to transition from the intrinsic value
method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation under APB 25 to SFAS 123’s fair
value method of accounting, if a company so elects. The adoption of this standard did not have a
significant impact on the financial position or results of operations of the Company.

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 45 (FIN 45), “Guarantor’s
Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of
Indebtedness of Others.” FIN 45 clarifies disclosures that are required to be made certain
guarantees and establishes a requirement to record a liability at fair value for certain guarantees at
the time of the guarantee’s issuance. The disclosure requirements of FIN No. 45 have been
applied in these financial statements. The requirement to record a liability applies to guarantees
issues or modified after December 31, 2002. The Company does not expect the requirements of
FIN 45 to have a significant impact on the financial position or results of operations of the
Company.

In July 2002, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 146,
“Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities.” The statement requires
companies to recognize costs associated with exit or disposal activities when they are incurred
rather than at the date of a commitment to an exit or disposal plan. Examples of costs covered by
the statement include lease termination costs and certain employee severance costs that are
associated with a restructuring, discontinued operation, plant closing or other exit or disposal
activity. The statement is to be applied prospectively to exit or disposal activities initiated after
December 31, 2002. The adoption of this statement is not expected to have a significant impact
on the financial position or results of operations of the Company.
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11. RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS (Continued):

In May 2002, the FASB issued SFAS 145, “Rescission of SFAS Nos. 4, 44 and 64, Amendment of
SFAS 13, and Technical Corrections as of April 2002.” The provisions of this statement related to
the rescission of Statement 4 shall be applied in fiscal years beginning after May 15, 2002. The
provisions related to Statement 13 shall be effective for transactions occurring after May 15, 2002,
with early application encouraged. All provisions of this Statement shail be effective for financial
statements issued on or after May 15, 2002, with early applicaticn encouraged. Adoption of this
statement did not have a significant impact on the financial position or results of operations of the
Company.

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of
Long-Lived Assets.” This Statement supersedes SFAS No. 121, “Accounting for the Impairment
of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of,” and the accounting and
reporting provisions of APB Cpinion No. 30, “Reporting the Results of Operations -- Reporting
the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently
Occurring Events and Transactions,” for the disposal of a segment of a business (as previously
defined in that Opinion). The provisions of this SFAS 144 are effective for financial statements
issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001, and interim periods within those fiscal
years, with early application encouraged. The provisions of this standard are generally to be applied
prospectively. During the first quarter of 2002, the Company scld Kings Pointe Mobile Home Park,
located in Winter Haven, Florida, for approximately $3.4 million. In accordance with SFAS 144,
the Company’s consolidated statements of income and consolidated statements of cash flow have
been revised from those originally reported for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 tc
separately reflect the results of discontinued operations for this property. These results were
previcusly included in income from operations. These revisions had nc impact on the Company’s
consolidated balance sheets or statements of stockholders’ equity and these revisions had no
impact on net income or net income per share of common stock for the years ended December 31,
2002, 2001 and 2000.

In June 2001, the FASB approved SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations and SFAS No. 142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” SFAS 141 requires, among other things, that the
purchase method of accounting for business combinations be used for all business combinations
initiated after September 30, 2001. SFAS 142 addresses the accounting for goodwill and other
intangible assets subsequent to their acquisition. SFAS 142 requires, among other things, that
goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assets no longer be amortized and that such assets be
tested for impairment at least annually. The adoption of these standards did not have a significant
impact on the financial position or results of operations of the Company.

12. CONTINGENCIES:

On March 21, 2003, the Company received an unfiled complaint by T.J. Holdings, LLC (“TJ

Holdings”), a member of Sun/Forest , LLC (“Sun/Forest”) (which, in turn, owns an equity interest

in SunChamp LLC), against the Company, SunChamp LLC, certain other affiliates of the

Company and two directors of Sun Communities, Inc. The unfiled complaint alieges that the

defendants wrongfully deprived the plaintiff of economic opportunities that they took for

themselves in contravention of duties allegedly owed to the plaintiff and purports to claim damages
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12. CONTINGENCIES (Continued):

of $13.0 million plus an unspecified amount for punitive damages. The Company believes the
unfiled complaint and the claims threatened therein have no merit and, if this complaint is
ultimately filed, the Company will defend it vigorously.

The Company is involved in various other legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of

business. All such proceedings, taken together, are not expected to have a material adverse impact
in our results of operations or financial condition.
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ANNUAL MEETING

The annual meeting of shareholders will be held at 11:00
a.m., Wednesday, May, 28 2003 at the Novi Hilton, 21 111
Haggerty Road, Novi, Michigan 48375.

SEC FORM 10-K

A copy of the Form 10-K Annual Report filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission for the year ended
December 31,2002 is available at no charge to
shareholders who direct a written request to:

Carol Petersen, Investor Relations
Sun Communities, Inc.

The American Center

27777 Franklin Road, Suite 200
Southfield, Michigan 48034
Telephone (248) 208-2500

Web Site www.suncommunities.com

TRANSFER AGENT & DIVIDEND
DISBURSING AGENT

EquiServe Trust Company, N.A,

PO. Box 43011

Providence, Rl 02940

Shareholder Inquiries [-800-426-5523

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

400 Renaissance Center

Detroit, Michigan 48243

CORPORATE COUNSEL

Jaffe, Raitt, Heuer & Weiss
Professional Corporation

One Woodward Avenue, Suite 2400
Detroit, Michigan 48226

GARY A, SHIFFMAN
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Director

»  JEFFREY P.JORISSEN

Executive Vice President, Treasurer,
Chief Financial Officer and Secretary

BRIAN W. FANNON
Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer

. JONATHAN M. COLMAN

Executive Vice President

KAREN }. DEARING
Corporate Controller

PAUL D. LAPIDES

Director of Corporate Governance Center and Professor
of Management and Entrepreneurship, Coles College of
Business, Kennesaw State University

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS
Sun Communities, Inc.

The American Center

27777 Franklin Road, Suite 200
Southfield, Michigan 48034
Telephone (248) 208-2500

REGIONAL OFFICES
Austin, Texas

Dayton, Ohio

Elkhart, Indiana

Grand Rapids, Michigan
Orlando, Florida

STOCK TRADING INFORMATION
New York Stock Exchange
Ticker Symbol — SUI

QUARTERLY STOCK PRICE INFORMATION

2002 HIGH LOW  DISTRIBUT
First Quarter $40.19 $36.73 $.55
Second Quarter $42.60 $39.00 $.58
Third Quarter  $41.93 $33.50 $.58
Fourth Quarter $37.00 $32.25 $.58

2001 HIGH LOW  DISTRIBUT
First Quarter $34.69 $30.80 $.53
Second Quarter $35.50 $31.60 $.55
Third Quarter $36.85 $34.73 $.55
Fourth Quarter $38.55 $36.00 $.55

CLUNET R.LEWIS
President of CRL Enterprises, Inc.

RONALD L. PIASECKI
Executive Vice President and Director of
Aspen Enterprises, Ltd.

TED ). SIMON
Principal of Grand Sakwa Properties, Inc,

ARTHUR A WEISS
Shareholder, Director and Vice President of
Jaffe, Raitt, Heuer & Weiss, P.C.
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